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Vision, Mission and Values of the IPCC

® HRY - RIE- - HARMEE
IR E R HIE
A fair and impartial police

complaints system accountable
to the public

@ HRUZTTNRFEAF AL  BUE - AFEH
EHERIE - WHER TIFRHENZEZ - ES
RBE = RARNREE

Ensure police complaints are handled in a fair,
impartial, effective and transparent manner, and
advise on improvement to police procedures to
enhance service quality and public accountability
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Retrospect and Prospect
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Retrospect

| am deeply honoured to serve as the Council Chairman of the
Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC) from 2014 to
2018. Looking back at what has undergone in the past four
years, it was full of challenges. With concerted efforts and high
morale, we managed to overcome them one by one. The social
climate gradually intensified when | took up the role. Several IPCC
Members and | conducted a 12-hour on-site observation of the
procession on 1 July 2014 i.e. from noon till midnight, which was
just one month after my appointment; and barely three months
after, the 70-day Occupy Central Movement (OCM) took place.

| can still recall how frequently my phone rang in the middle
of nights then, with countless issues requiring my immediate
attention. In addition to dealing with a number of complaints
against IPCC Members for their political stances, we also met
with various stakeholders and concem groups. Having to face all
kinds of questions and queries, our Members and Secretariat staff
were under extreme pressure which was beyond words. While
we were still handling the large amount of OCM-related complaint
cases, the Mongkok Riot occurred. Fortunately, we managed to
work hand in hand and overcome all these challenges. Looking
back, even those restless nights have now become a part of my
treasured memories.
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Public order events that took place during the past few years did
give rise to many complaints. Apart from keeping a close eye on
how they were dealt with, the IPCC also proposed a number of
practical improvement recommendations to the Police. It was
encouraging to see those suggestions being accepted by the
Police and procession organisers, and consequently the number
of complaints arising from large-scale public order events has
dropped significantly to almost none in the recent years. Another
thing that touched me deeply was the compliment on IPCC’s work
received from citizens when | was walking in the streets. They
understood how demanding it has been for the IPCC to carry
out its duties in a polarised social climate, and the challenge to
effectively implement an independent and impartial two-tier police
complaints system.

It was my privilege to play a part in IPCC's work in the past
four years. Through concerted efforts of the entire team, we
strived to improve and have made substantial achievements in
effective governance and management including: (i) continued
enhancement in vetting efficiency with almost all complicated,
long-pending cases being properly processed; (i) a noticeable
one-third reduction in average time required for vetting cases
which dropped from the 144-day peak in 2015/16 to 96
days in the current vyear; (i) the increased Complaints Against
Police Office (CAPQO’s) acceptance rate of 73% in 2017/18 for
recommendations made by the IPCC compared to 64% four
years ago; and (iv) a surge in the attendance rate of Observers,
who played a role in monitoring the work of the Police, from 79%
in 2014/15 to nearly 95% in 2017/18.

One of the IPCC'’s key duties is to enhance the quality of police
services. Over the years, the IPCC has been paying close
attention to and analysing the trends in complaint cases, as well
as advising CAPO on how to improve relevant police practices
and procedures. Having made suggestions this year in relation to
guidelines on the use of private mobile phones for official purposes
and reinforced training on handling of domestic violence, the
IPCC has helped enhance relevant police procedures during the
reporting period.

The Observers Scheme enables the IPCC to monitor, as an
independent party, the interviews and collection of evidence
carried out by the Police during its initial investigation of Reportable
Complaints. The IPCC is grateful to all Observers for spending their
personal time to assist upholding of the two-tier police complaints
system. Over the past few years, we have been providing
Observers with enhanced support from multiple aspects, such as
upgrading of the electronic booking system, organising workshops
with CAPO, as well as coordinating administrative arrangements
with the Police and other Government departments to reduce the
on-site waiting time of Observers. With the efforts of all concemed
parties, the effectiveness of Observers Scheme in monitoring has
been greatly enhanced.
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In order to strengthen its interaction with local youth and encourage
the younger generation to analyse current affairs from multiple
perspectives, the IPCC has launched its School Programme
since 2016. With the support from school principals, teachers
and students, we continue to expand the programme. Over the
past year or so, the IPCC reached out to over 3,200 teachers
and students from tertiary institutions as well as secondary and
primary schools through 32 visits and talks, enabling more young
people to better understand the IPCC's functions.

Apart from complaint handling and public education, the Council
has also stepped up its efforts in corporate governance and
administration on all fronts over the past four years, including:
(i) revision of the Council and Committee rules; (i) conduct of
Human Resources Management Review and implementation of
suggestions set out in the consultancy report; (iil) establishment of
Research Team; (iv) introduction of a structured staff development
and training programme; and (v) application of information
technology such as introducing electronic database system for
managing complaint cases and upgrading the electronic mail
security system. Furthermore, the acquisitions of additional
resources such as manpower and office space have remarkably
improved both the work environment and efficiency of the
organisation. Through these measures, the IPCC has laid down a
solid foundation to be better equipped for future development and
rise up to emerging challenges.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
gratitude to all of our Members, Observers and the Secretariat staff
for their continued support and professionalism, without which the
IPCC would not have made such significant achievements again
in the past year. | would also like to thank CAPO and the general
public for their cooperation and support which allowed the IPCC
to serve justice to both the Complainants and the Complainees by
comprehensively, fairly and impartially vetting each complaint case
under its evidence-based principle.

Mr Anthony Francis Neoh, SC was appointed as the Council
Chairman on 1 June 2018. With his extensive experience both in
public services and the legal field, | have every faith that Mr Neoh
will lead the IPCC to fully discharge its statutory duties, further
enhance service quality of the Police, preserve the IPCC’s core
values of independence, impartiality and integrity, and continue to
serve the people of Hong Kong with dedication. | wish the IPCC
all the best in its future endeavours.

Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
Former IPCC Chairman
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Prospect

| assumed office as Chairman of the Independent Police
Complaints Council (IPCC) in mid-2018. It is a great honour to
be entrusted with this important role. Though | have only taken
up this position for a short period of time, the professionalism,
dedication and enthusiasm of the Council Members and
Secretariat staff have deeply impressed me, as has the
dedication of our Observers, whom | have had the pleasure of
meeting at the annual workshop in September. This is such an
impressive team, and | look forward to building on my experience
and network at other public organisations and authorities, in
working with the team to uphold Hong Kong’s two-tier police
complaints system.

Paraphrasing Confucius, a man or an organisation without
credibility has no place in society. As an independent statutory
body that serves a monitoring function, “credibility” is the
cornerstone based on which IPCC’s work is carried out. | would
like to share with you my vision for the IPCC’s development
through three aspects involving “credibility”, namely mutual trust,
integrity and conviction.
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Mutual trust: we are fully aware of people’s frustration when
making complaints, just as we understand the unseen pressure
faced by police officers being complained against. As an
independent and impartial statutory body, our neutral role
allows us to find the right balance between the expectations
and demands of both sides. Upholding the unyielding principle
of truthfulness, the IPCC maintains a meticulous and evidence-
based vetting standard, so as to ensure fair treatment for both the
Complainants and Complainees. Only by gaining trust from both
the public (the Complainants) and the Police (the Complainees)
can we be able to strengthen the police complaints system and
discharge the statutory duties fully.

The IPCC is also obliged to maintaining impartiality and complying
with its confidentiality obligation for case vetting work. The IPCC
is therefore not in a position to disclose any details of or make
any comments on a complaint case before the conclusion of
the vetting process even though we want to gain trust of parties
involved. Though this approach may affect public perception
about the Council's transparency, the IPCC has enhanced its
efforts in releasing endorsed cases timely in a thematic basis
through the IPCC Newsletter and its annual report, enabling
the general public to gain a deeper insight into the Council’s
vetting process, classifications of investigation results and
recommendations made to improve the service quality of the
Police. By doing so, the IPCC hopes the community would better
understand our efforts in scrutinising every single case based on
its merits, evidence, as well as raising Queries and discussing
case details with CAPO. The ultimate goal of our work is to attain
an investigation result which is fair to both the Complainants and
the Complainees.

In addition, the IPCC will continue to take the initiative to
communicate and interact with frontline officers from different
units, so as to learn about their duties and the challenges they
faced. This allows the IPCC to place itself in other's position
when vetting complaint cases and helps to restore case facts by
understanding the setting and issues associated with different
categories and nature of complaint cases.

Integrity: this is one of the IPCC'’s three core values. The 28 IPCC
Members come from a wide spectrum of sectors, including the
financial, business, political, engineering, legal, philanthropic,
medical, academic and social services sectors. Each a leader
in their respective fields with extensive experience in public
services, the IPCC Members not only contribute with their
professional insights, but are also acutely aware of social issues.
Assisted by diversified opinions that cover multiple aspects, the
IPCC can deliberate on matters from different perspectives,
thereby improving its monitoring function. Each Member in the
team makes judgement based on evidence and in accordance
with applicable laws with an aim to reach impartial conclusion.
The IPCC conducts thorough examination of each complaint
case which demonstrates the Council's integrity, commitment
and accountability in safeguarding the complaints system and
fairess.
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In addition to vetting cases, the IPCC also attaches great
importance to the expectation of the society. Accordingly, further
to effort in enhancing the transparency of our vetting procedures
by sharing more complaint cases with the community through
various channels, we also endeavour to explain the IPCC’s
roles to the public and how we properly exercise powers
conferred under the functions as provided for under the IPCC
Ordinance. For instance, Observers may observe the collection
of evidence in connection with the Police’s investigation as set
out in the Observers Scheme; the Council may also conduct
interviews with case-related persons or experts to obtain
information. By educating the public about the IPCC'’s principles
of independence and impartiality, it is hoped that we could
gain more recognition from the society. As a monitoring body,
the IPCC upholds integrity, adopts an open and transparent
approach, and accepts monitoring of our work by the general
public, concern groups and the media.

Conviction: each investigation result endorsed by the IPCC could
be a good reference for future. Arriving at the classification for
each complaint case does not just mark the completion of the
examination of a complaint case, it also presents opportunity to
learn from and reflect on past experience, enabling remedial or
preventive actions be taken where necessary.

As the second tier of the police complaints system, the IPCC
inevitably finds itself amid the growing public expectations
towards governmental and public organisations. On this account,
the IPCC sets out to enhance its research and analytical efforts,
to identify the causes of issues using data collected over the
years, and to provide the Police with practical suggestions to
make improvements and reduce complaints. We will also study
in depth relevant codes and practices of the Police based on
findings from our vetting work as well as drawing lessons from
overseas monitoring bodies with a view to offer effective and
practical recommendations to the Police to improve in areas
such as procedures, training, equipment and guidelines, for
preventing the recurrence of similar complaints.

The IPCC is convinced that there is no “best’, only “better” with
regard to its work. It will therefore constantly keep up its effort to
improve the quality of police services, to prevent complaints and
to strengthen Hong Kong's two-tier police complaints system.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my heartfelt gratitude to my predecessor, Mr Larry Kwok Lam-
kwong, for his dedication and contribution to the IPCC. | would
also like to thank all of our current Members, Secretariat staff,
as well as Mr Clement Tao Kwok-lau and Mr John Yan Mang-
yee, SC, who retired from the IPCC service recently, for their
unwavering support and assistance to the Council.
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Highlights of the year

BEHRN EESHESTRANBRS
g OMARBRMEEIARE (EESE
) RABBERAEEREES -

During the reporting period, IPCC held four
press conferences to release its annual
report, IPCC Newsletters and the results of
public opinion survey to the public.

'ié.; =

5l
EEESRASTHER SEABFREROFERAKRE
BhOEELEEAYRY  THREHEBHNEE -

The IPCC visited the Yuen Long District, Emergency Unit Hong
Kong Island and the Junior Police Call Permanent Activity
Centre and Integrated Youth Training Camp to understand the
operations of various departments in the Police Force.

ZERBLt-EBITHRS  BRES
BEARBEARTBHNRERRE -
Members  conducted  on-site
observation of measures taken by
the Police in handling public order
event on 1 July 2017.

EESRRFERRNFRAETOABESE
BoSBELMBETRRLCETR B mMEE
ETENERE  URMEBAREES TENR

o

Four joint meetings were held between the
IPCC and CAPO during the reporting period. To
enhance transparency and public awareness,
part of these meetings were opened to the media
and the public.
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FEHME ‘ Highlights of the year

ZEIGFZEHERRBS
MEERRNBEESNIHE
RREHEREE -

Members visited various District
Principals’ Associations to
introduce the work of the IPCC
and the School Programme.

BEEEERHESTARECASHENEEESEEAZA The IPCC was invited by the Department of Journalism
SEBERE  UREEEESEAEBHBERESEE  and Communication of Hong Kong Shue Yan University,

i i BEE5008 K BEAE R RIE o and the Department of Journalism of Hong Kong Baptist
University to speak at the General Assembly and a major

course lecture respectively, reaching out to over 500
university students and members of the teaching staff.

EEENAFEE-—SBARBERENE  REPRHLEST16M
B N FEIB21R IR EREIB2,200 B A £ ©
The IPCC further expanded the School Programme this year and

visited 16 secondary and primary schools, reaching out to over 2,200
teachers and students through 21 visits during the reporting period.
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ZEAREELNEEH  QMNBEE
BHEEREE o

The IPCC met with the Supervision
Committee of Guangdong Provincial Public
Security Department and Ombudsman of
Thailand and introduced the IPCC and our
statutory roles to them.

EESERGEBADBGETNERDRERY AW
SAERMNEREE  UTERIRFEERS
YHRFEENZEIRER -

The IPCC visited the Canadian Association for Civilian
Oversight of Law Enforcement (CACOLE) and four
oversight bodies in Australia to gain understanding of the
complaint handling mechanisms of these countries and to
exchange views on issues related to complaint handling.

ZERFALEMLAMBES

H REMMEEREEAL
AREENER -

Members met with Society kt
for Community Organization / F ;
and listened to their views =it
on the prevention of suicide

attempts by people detained
in custody.
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Police complaints system in Hong Kong

R
AE AR

CAPO
investigates
complaints

BB R ERHE 2 H M EREHEK

FIBERRERNESR - ORXABLERRE

BTHRFEEREERES « f AR
TRHENHE—TE -
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EESEELRHTRE LAFERE - 0
REARY  GERRFAEERB LR
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RRIEFER  T2REHAEER 1R
RFFERBIENE _E
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IPCC reviews
investigation
reports

Hong Kong has adopted a two-tier police complaints system.
All complaints against the Police are referred to the Complaints
Against Police Office (CAPO) of the Hong Kong Police Force
for handling and investigation. This is the first tier of the police
complaints system.

When CAPO has completed the investigation of a Reportable
Complaint, it will submit the investigation report, together with
relevant files, documents and materials, to the Independent Police
Complaints Gouncil (IPCC) for scrutiny.

If any doubt arises during its review of the investigation report and
the relevant materials, the IPCC will ask CAPO for clarification or
further information. If the IPCC finds the investigation inadequate,
it will request that the case be further investigated. Only when
the IPCC completely agrees that the complaint case has been
properly handled will it endorse the investigation report. This is the
second tier of the police complaints system.



BERRFERTENMERE

Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system

RFE SR EWARE RIRF
CAPO receives Reportable Complaint

BRI E RER &7
CAPO investigates Investigation
complaints |
RREEFRIAERS
CAPO submits investigation report
EESERHATRE

IPCC reviews investigation report
EEEEEGAERE l l
= %k & . -
mc;a' BBREEER FTEEREEE
_ JEEL Agrees with Disagrees with
investigation investigation result investigation result _
reports 0 I EE B EEIRA ® I FERRENR B ENIRBEELER

MERBHNEMEEARRFERERINE
BIRFREMEE - EEESIERBILATHK
B AINEBMER
RUABRIRFHREMAL - Y AEBR
BREMITHEERHEEAERRFEHENE

R -

® L AIHIKRFASKEETH

o EZERMBA RREERTIER R
B REBRERN/SITHRERD

® CAPO responds to Complainant

® Police take appropriate action against
Complainee

® |PCC may offer recommendations to
the Commissioner of Police and/ or

the Chief Executive on improvements
to police practices and procedures

® |PCC seeks clarification or further
information from CAPO

v
THEMBE

Rejects report

® T ERBFERRENAL

® A2 REANFBER

® FRER TIEEEEHIME SRR B

® May request CAPO to reinvestigate
complaint

® May interview witnesses to clarify
uncertainties

® May bring up the case during working level
meetings or joint IPCC/CAPO meetings

The advantage of the two-tier system is that it ensures the fair and
just handling of complaints against the Police. As an independent
statutory body, the IPCC can objectively observe, monitor and
review the handling and investigation of Reportable Complaints
by the Commissioner of Police, and put forward opinions and
recommendations regarding such complaints to the Commissioner

of Police and the Chief Executive.
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The role and functions of the IPCC
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IpC
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The IPCC was established as a statutory body on 1 June 2009
under the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance
(IPCCO) (Cap. 604, Laws of Hong Kong) to observe, monitor and
review the Commissioner of Police’s handling and investigation
of Reportable Complaints against the Police. With the IPCCO
taking effect, the Police have a statutory duty to comply with the
IPCC'’s requests. The Ordinance enhanced the independence
of the IPCC in carrying out its monitoring functions.

The IPCC comprises a Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and not
less than eight Members, all appointed by the Chief Executive.
This composition enables the IPCC to draw upon the diverse
professional expertise and experience of its Members from a
wide spectrum of society to monitor CAPO'’s investigation of
complaints against the Police in an independent, impartial and
thorough manner. As of 31 March 2018, the IPCC comprises
28 Members.



BREEHRA) MPREEFMNEEHEENT :
The main functions of the IPCC as provided for under the IPCCO are:

©
®
@
O
O,

BR - ERNMBRER KR R EIEMHAS AR RIR e TIE

To observe, monitor and review the handling and investigation of
Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of Police

ERERRR RO &I S mEAERISHFBEINEFAELK
HHI1TED
To monitor actions taken or to be taken in respect of any police

officer by the Commissioner of Police in connection with Reportable
Complaints

BB TR R IR T 5| 23 A] E S| BURIE BRI AR HY BR K
A BR

To identify any fault or deficiency in police practices or procedures
that has led to or might lead to a Reportable Complaint

[RIERSbE fE A/ SITHER B IR A R A = R/
SE R

To advise the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive of
its opinion and/or recommendations in connection with Reportable
Complaints

A58 A SR B ) A 68 B o

To promote public awareness of the role of the Council
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BERNERENF
Monitoring procedures of the IPCC

IPCC Members
and
Observers
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REFE S
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CAPO

g4

m 5

SWER
IPCC
Secretariat

Under the two-tier police complaints system, when an
investigation report of a Reportable Complaint is submitted by
CAPO to the IPCC, the Secretariat will conduct a preliminary
examination on it and may raise Queries and ask for clarification
or further information from CAPO. If the Secretariat has no
Queries, the report will be submitted to Members for scrutiny.
If necessary, Members can make further Queries and discuss
the case with CAPO at working level or joint meetings.

If the IPCC'’s final decision is not to endorse the investigation
results of a particular case, it may disclose the disagreement
of both parties on the findings of the investigation to the Chief
Executive and/or the public.



REERRER
IPCC monitoring procedures

REFEER BRETMER BREaEXERIES
CAPO IPCC Secretariat IPCC Members and
Observers
Bt

EWIRER
Complaint received

Observers Scheme

AL ERZ

Vetting

&/ A7 H TR RAER E

ETHAE
Investigation

RHER
Raise Queries

Vetting shared by four sub-groups

TR A E WA

RAEEH

PAERHRRERS
Investigation completed
and investigation
report submitted to
the IPCC

BERAEZER

Clarification/provide
more information

EERSRRFERRE
FRERECHIERER
If required, working level
meeting between the IPCC
and CAPO to be conducted

—HEK
Further vetting

REERE
WELRERHAE
Case unresolved

ERE/ RFERR
WREEE

EET

REER
Raise Queries

No Query

HEFE—SEX
Further vetting by Chairman

REEH
No Query

RHER
Raise Queries

BRARAEER
Investigation
result endorsed

FERE
s Council’'s
confirmation

REARTEEB
Investigation result
not endorsed

Discussion at joint IPCC/
CAPO meeting

Bl BIEHFA

o BITBRERS
Report to the Chief Executive

e AARKEESRATERNER DB/
BB WIRFEBABSRDNTHNZR
Disclose disagreement on investigation
result/opinion on actions to be taken
against defaulting officers

Respond to Complainant

27
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In addition to reviewing the investigation reports, the IPCC may ask
for interviews with persons related to the case to clarify matters.
The IPCC Interview was introduced in 1994, and the IPCC may,
for the purpose of considering CAPO’s investigation reports,
interview any persons who may provide relevant information or
assistance, including Complainants, Complainees, witnesses, or
other independent persons.
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Observers Scheme
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The Observers Scheme was introduced in 1996 to strengthen
the IPCC’s monitoring function and help the Council observe
how Reportable Complaints have been handled and investigated
by CAPO. Under the Scheme, Observers appointed by the
Secretary for Security may attend interviews and observe the
collection of evidence in connection with CAPQO’s investigation
of Reportable Complaints. IPCC Members can likewise conduct
such observations.

Insofar as practicable, CAPO will notify the IPCC at least 48
hours in advance of any impending interview or collection of
evidence. The IPCC Secretariat will then notify Observers
of the observations. Apart from prearranged observations,
Observers can also attend and observe investigations without
prior appointments.

The role of an Observer is primarily to observe and report.
The Observer is to remain fair and impartial, without interfering
or offering personal opinions, while observing the conduct of
interviews or collection of evidence.

After each observation, the Observer will submit to the IPCC a
report stating whether the interview or collection of evidence was
conducted in a fair and impartial manner. Should any irregularities
be reported, the IPCC will follow up with CAPO.

All persons who are to be interviewed by CAPO in connection with
a Reportable Complaint can request an Observer to be present
during the interview. Upon receipt of such a request, the IPCC
will make every effort to arrange the observation accordingly.

As of 31 March 2018, there were 109 IPCC Observers.
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Complainee

CAPO Officer

B4 &

(0

IPCC Observer

HEENEE

Appointment of Observers

(CEEEERB) F331%)

ELeBRERBRERBREME - REARBREENTYAG  LTATHIERZEAERE
1. EBRBER B PIEERFRA (TmBRR R IEE) WAL

2. BEEEWER AFEREREMEMES

3. BEEBREMAL

(Section 33 of IPCCO)
The IPCC Observers are appointed by the Secretary for Security. To ensure their impartiality, the
following persons are not eligible for appointment as Observers:

1. A person who holds an office of emolument, whether permanent or temporary, in a Government
bureau or department

2. The Secretary-General, the Legal Adviser or any other employee of the Council

3. A former member of the Police Force

BYEREHERRFESS | 201718 THEHS
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Joint meetings: IPCC and CAPO

EEeMRRERREEMBITTERT
T AR ERENEEEE -

RTBARETHRELTENTHE BES
A AR BETRLERZE - B/E
E.u%%E’JEIHHTDu%E ERgRMNEEEH
WELQT - ARBOEBENERLENE

FEEEE R (www.ipcc.gov.hk) e

The IPCC and CAPO conduct guarterly joint meetings to
discuss matters relating to police complaints.

To enable the public to better understand the work of the IPCC,
part of each joint meeting is open to the public and the media.
The dates and agendas of the joint meetings are published in
advance on the IPCC’s website. Minutes of the open part of
each meeting are also uploaded to the IPCC’s website (www.
ipcc.gov.hk).
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Reportable Complaints and Notifiable Complaints
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Reportable Complaints

“Reportable Complaints” refer to complaints, lodged by members
of the public, that are not vexatious or frivolous and are made in
good faith, relating to the conduct of police officers while on duty
or who identify themselves as police officers while off duty. The
complaint should be made by or on behalf of a person directly
affected by the police misconduct.

CAPO must submit investigation reports to the IPCC for scrutiny
as stated in the Ordinance. However, investigation reports and
information on the following complaints need not be submitted to
the IPCC:

e Complaints arising from the issue of a summons or imposition
of a fixed penalty, which solely relate to the validity of the issue

e Complaints lodged by a person in his official capacity as a
member of the Police Force

e Complaints that fall under the scope of investigation of other
statutory bodies
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Notifiable Complaints

‘Notifiable Complaints” are complaints not categorised

s “Reportable Complaints”, or complaints that need not
be submitted to the IPCC as listed above. These include
anonymous complaints or complaints lodged by persons who
are not directly affected by the case.

CAPO must regularly submit a summary of “Notifiable
Complaints” to the IPCC for scrutiny. If the IPCC considers any
of these cases to be “Reportable Complaints”, the IPCC may
raise relevant suggestions to CAPO, and CAPQO will then need
to reconsider the categorisation of the complaint. Moreover,
the IPCC may request CAPO to submit further supporting
information or explanation regarding the categorisation of any
particular complaint.
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Classification of investigation results
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A complaint may consist of one or more allegations. After CAPO has conducted a full and thorough investigation
into an allegation, it will be classified as one of the following six types according to the findings:

Substantiated

Substantiated
Other Than
Reported

Not Fully
Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

No Fault

False

An allegation is classified as “"Substantiated” when there is sufficient reliable
evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

An allegation is classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported” when
matters other than the original allegations raised by the Complainant, which
are closely associated with the complaint and have a major impact on the
investigation, have been discovered and are found to be substantiated.

An allegation is classified as “Not Fully Substantiated” when there is some
reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant, but it
is insufficient to fully substantiate the complaint.

An allegation is classified as “Unsubstantiated” when there is insufficient
evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

Two common reasons for classifying a complaint as “No Fault” are, first,
the Complainant may have misunderstood the facts; and second, the
Complainee was acting under lawful instructions from his superior officer or
in accordance with established police practices.

An allegation is classified as “False” when there is sufficient reliable evidence
to indicate that the allegation made by the Complainant is untrue, be it a
complaint with clear malicious intent, or a complaint which is not based
upon genuine conviction or sincere belief but with no element of malice.

When a complaint is classified as “False”, CAPO will consider, in consultation
with the Department of Justice as necessary, prosecuting the Complainant
for misleading a police officer.
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classifications
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Some complaints are handled by other means, so that no full investigation is necessary. These complaints can be
classified as:

Withdrawn A complaint is clagsiﬁed as “V\(ithqlravvn" when the Complainant does not wish to
pursue the complaint after making it.

Even when a Complainant initiates the withdrawal of a complaint, the IPCC will
ensure that no undue influence has been exerted on the Complainant, and that the
Police can leamn from the complaint. The IPCC will also ensure that CAPO will take
appropriate remedial actions.

A Complainant's withdrawal does not necessarily result in the case being classified as
“Withdrawn”. The IPCC and CAPO will examine the available evidence to ascertain
whether a full investigation is warranted despite the withdrawal and/or whether any
of the allegations are substantiated on the basis of information available.

NOt An allegation is classified as “Not Pursuable” when:

® The identity of the officer in the complaint cannot be ascertained
Pursuable e The cooperation of the Complainant cannot be obtained to proceed with the
investigation.

The above definition does not mean that no further action will be taken when the
Complainant cannot identify the Complainee. CAPO will make an effort to identify
the Complainee(s) on the basis of the information available. Only after such an effort
has been made to no avail will the conclusion be reached that the identity of the
Complainee cannot be ascertained.

If a complaint has been classified as “Not Pursuable” due to lack of cooperation from
the Complainant, it may be reactivated later when the Complainant comes forward
to provide the necessary information.

Curta“ed A complaint is classified as “Curtailed” when it has been registered with CAPO
but is curtailed - i.e. not fully investigated - on the authorisation of the Chief
Superintendent (Complaints and Internal Investigations Branch), owing to special
circumstances such as known mental condition of the Complainant.

Informally The "Informal Resolution Scheme" aims at a speedy resolution of minor complaints,
such as allegations of impoliteness or use of offensive language, the nature of
ReSOIVed which is considered relatively minor.

A minor complaint suitable for Informal Resolution will not be subject to a full
investigation. Instead, a senior officer, of at least the rank of Chief Inspector
of Police, will act as the Concilliating Officer and make separate enquiries with
the Complainant and the Complainee regarding the facts of a complaint. If the
Conciliating Officer is satisfied that the matter is suitable for Informal Resolution,
and the Complainant is in agreement, the complaint will be informally resolved.
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History of the IPCC
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UMELCO Police Group

The establishment of the IPCC can be traced back to
1974, when the Commissioner of Police set up CAPO
to investigate police complaints from the public. Having
considered that the investigations should involve an
independent body, the Commissioner of Police invited
the sub-committee of the Unofficial Members of the
Executive and Legislative Councils (UMELCO), which was
responsible for handling police and security matters, to
monitor CAPO complaint investigations in 1977; this was
the prototype of the two-tier police complaints system. In
1978, the UMELCO Police Group presented its first report
on police complaints to the Governor (reporting period
from 1 September 1977 to 30 April 1978), which was
then submitted to the Legislative Council for review on 16
August 1978. From then on, the UMELCO Police Group
prepared an annual progress report.

After the UMELCO Police Group was established, there
was a drastic increase in the number of police complaints
which required its monitoring. The high workload indicated
there was a need to strengthen and broaden the monitoring
system structure. Thus, the Government set up a working
group to review the UMELCO Police Group’s monitoring of
CAPO in early 1984,

Police Complaints Committee

In 1986, after the Government meticulously reviewed the
working group’s recommendations, the then Governor
restructured the UMELCO Police Group and set up an
independent police complaints monitoring committee,
comprising Justices of the Peace as members and a
supporting secretariat. It was also renamed as the Police
Complaints Committee.
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Independent Police Complaints Council -
before becoming a statutory body

In December 1994, the Committee was further revamped to
pave the way for becoming an independent statutory body,
clarifying the Council's powers and functions. Both the
English and Chinese names of the Council were modified to
better reflect its independence.

The Bill that suggested changing the then IPCC into a statutory
body was introduced to the Legislative Council in July 1996.
The Bill proposed clarifying the powers and functions of the
then IPCC, in order to reinforce its authority in handling police
complaints, and to enhance public awareness of the Council
as an independent monitoring entity.

As some Legislative Council Members raised a number of
Committee Stage Amendments that might bring fundamental
changes to the police complaints system, the Bill was
withdrawn by the Government on 23 June 1997,

Independent Police Complaints Council -
after becoming a statutory body

In 2004, the Government relaunched its plan to change the
then IPCC into a statutory body, with a view to empowering it
with a legal basis to discharge its functions and to raise public
confidence in the two-tier police complaints system. On 29
June 2007, the Independent Police Complaints Council Bill
was gazetted. The Bill was tabled at the Legislative Council
on 11 July 2007 for First Reading.

The Legislative Council passed the IPCCO in July 2008. The
Secretary of Security then decided that the IPCCO would
come into effect on 1 June 2009 and the IPCC become a
statutory body on the same date. The Chinese name of the
Council was modified to highlight its monitoring role, while the
English name was retained.
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Number of investigation reports and allegations

EE R ABIAERIGREREF

Number of Reportable Complaint cases received and endorsed

2017/18 2016/17

cases endorsed

ERMAERILRER

Reportable Complaint 1,616 1,667
cases received

BIBRY/BEERIGRER

Reportable Complaint 1,617 1,550

EARIFEIAN(2017F481BE20184F3
A31H)  EEeHERIRFLERR1,616
TRITHVEE RIS FERNBAERS - EF
AT KI3.1% ©

EH - EEZ2i@iB 71,617 RABEREHK
ERMNAELER(BIENBTHERESR)
RELMA3% - BT EBREZRN - R
WIEIEH2,87210  ZF LFHT2.3% °
HPTEN=-HEERRF A [ HR2B
1o [17BTE | RERE / HER
Bl & TRIT) -

BUEREHEBFEES | 201718 THES

During the reporting period (1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018), the
IPCC received reports from CAPO on the investigation of 1,616
new Reportable Complaint cases, which represented an increase
of 3.1% compared to last year.

In the same period, the IPCC endorsed the results of investigations
for 1,617 Reportable Complaint cases (including 93 reviewed
cases), an increase of 4.3% compared to the previous year.
There were a total of 2,872 allegations, excluding the reviewed
cases, an increase of 2.3% compared to last year. The three
major allegations in descending order were “Neglect of Duty”,
“Misconduct/ Improper Manner/ Offensive Language” and
‘Assault”.
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The following chart shows details of the number of allegations endorsed (by nature):

REETHEANEE
Allegations endorsed by the IPCC

I 2017/18 #5422 Total number of allegations 2,872

B 2016/17 154248 Total number of allegations 2,807

Neglect of Duty

ThTE/ BERXE
/ =R
Misconduct/

Improper Manner/

Offensive Language

BT
Assault

BRI
Unnecessary
Use of Authority

2B
Threat

HEEE
Fabrication of
Evidence

BBER
Police Procedures

HFR4T
Other Offences

i ARENRE - BORNANRTEERSZ100% ©

181 6.3%

92 3.2%
103 3.7%

60 2.1%
114 4.1%

40 1.4%
57 2.0%

1 0.03%
2 0.1%

3 0.1%
3 0.1%

FEBFBEZFENIASIA °

1,452 50.6%

1,285 45.8%

1,043 36.3%

998 35.5%

245 8.7%

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year.
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Investigation results

TE2017/185F 1@ AA2,872IBFE1EH » &
ZEFATHIEEAE1,010E - EH68EE
PE [EZRBE]  HAEK2EAE
EIEH6.7% © 45IEW Y B [ REKR|E
BHRBE | (54.5% 21BN A [EET
2ERBE | 152.1% » 419181 A [&
EEE | 1H41.5% 0 401185 A [ E
i@ | 1539.7%  56IB AW A [E/RT
Tl - ABEIN5.5% °

EESBM,862BEFEITEHAEMNIE
YEdR - 32718 [BBBEFXER] 15
BEETEEAFAEEEF17.6% ° 642
B A [REFEE ] 1534.5% © 89318
WH A [EEBE ] 1547.9% ° BB IEIE
WhlA [RIERE] -
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Of the 2,872 allegations endorsed in 2017/18, 1,010 were

fully investigated. Of these, 68 (6.7% of fully investigated
allegations) were classified as “Substantiated”; 45 (4.5%)
as “Substantiated Other than Reported”; 21 (2.1%) as “Not
Fully Substantiated”; 419 (41.5%) as “Unsubstantiated”; 401
(39.7%) as “No Fault” and 56 (56.5%) as “False”.

Of the remaining 1,862 allegations which did not require
full investigation, 327 (17.6% of those not fully investigated)
were ‘Informally Resolved”; 642 (34.5%) were classified as
“Withdrawn”; 893 (47.9%) as “Not Pursuable”. There was no
allegation being classified as “Curtailed”.
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The following table shows a comparison of the figures regarding investigation results between 2016/17 and 2017/18:

BRETEANAEER

Investigation results endorsed by the IPCC

I 2017/18 #5428 Total number of allegations 2,87 2
Bl 2016/17 #5424 % Total number of allegations 2,807

EXHEE
Substantiated

REBBEZAEE
Substantiated Other
Than Reported

BEREERHEE
Not Fully Substantiated

BERE
Unsubstantiated

R SEE
No Fault

ERTE

False

EREHEL R

Informally Resolved

REFRE
Withdrawn

EEEE
Not Pursuable

& ARNENRE - BDRNBFREERSRZ100% °
FEHFBREZFENIA3A °

68 6.7%
49 52%

2017/18 K= EFEMNEE
2017/18 Allegations that required full investigation

2016/17 K2 ERAENIEE
2016/17 Allegations that required full investigation

45 4.5%
40 4.3%

21 2.1%
10 1.1%

419 41.5%
89 41.5%

3

401 39.7%
75 40.1%

3

56 5.5%
73 7.8%

327 17.6%
10.9%

204

642 34.5%
653 34.9%

2017/18 EFET R EBEMISE
2017/18 Allegations that did not require full investigation

2016/17 EEETEHATHNIEE
2016/17 Allegations that did not require full investigation

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year.
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1,010
936

3 47.9%

1,014 54.2%

1,862
1,871
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RETEANAEREFEARMIBENSF (RFHEEFRESRE5)
Number of allegations involved in the Reportable Complaints cases
endorsed by the IPCC (by nature and by results of investigations)

TTATE BERE
HEWE
Misconduct/ i R
BB RRET Improper Manner/ BT Unnecessary Use of
Neglect of Duty Offensive Language Assault Authority

| 201718 2016/17 | 2017118 2016/17 | 2017118 2016/17 | 201718 201617 |

L2 FAE WIS Allegations that required full investigation

=)
BEARE 52 35 12 11 1 0 3 3
Substantiated
RICBBEZHBE
Substantiated 38 36 4 1 Y 0 2 2
Other Than Reported

= =3
REEERAERE 1 3 5 5 2 0 2 1
Not Fully Substantiated
EEE 169 151 204 190 19 17 11 22
Unsubstantiated
30 B 5 282 260 71 72 4 8 36 25
No Fault
B 11 8 11 18 15 14 0 0
False
/N5t Subtotal 563 493 307 297 4 39 54 53
E|ERETEEAERISIE Allegations that did not require full investigation
BBMEL IR 139 97 188 107 0 0 0 0
Informal Resolution
B 363 312 201 228 52 60 12 13
Withdrawn

SEBE
REBE 387 383 347 366 88 146 26 37
Not Pursuable
/&t Subtotal 889 792 736 701 140 206 38 50

488 Total

4B BUBRRESRERFESS | 201718 THERE
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B Fabrication of EBEF HibFEIT EEg

Threat Evidence Police Procedures Other Offences Total

201718 2016/17 | 2017718 2016/17 | 201718 2016/17 | 2017718 2016/17 | 201718 2016/17

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 68 49
0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 45 40
0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 21 10
9 4 7 5 0 0 0 0 419 389
2 4 5 5 1 1 0 0 401 375
4 8 15 25 0 0 0 0 56 73
15 17 28 35 1 2 1 0 1,010 936
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 327 204
10 32 4 7 0 0 0 1 642 653
35 65 8 15 0 0 2 2 893 1,014
46 97 12 22 0 0 2 3 1,862 1,871
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ELHESAN SRR ETT

Police actions against defaulting officers

EARSRE FEEELES R BNERES - & In this reporting year, disciplinary proceedings or internal actions
1308 EEABEE SRR SEM were taken against 130 police officers regarding 91 cases
MEITE - FRIISER - HEHETE T endorsed by the IPCC. The following table shows the breakdown
= . of figures:

E35122016/175%2017/18 EFRES &
EIEFRNEREAERRNTEH

Police actions taken against defaulting officers
regarding cases endorsed by the IPCC during 2016/17 and 2017/18

B

BBRIRFER

ABEZH Number of officers

2017/18 2016/17
A. FIZE:RER Criminal proceedings 0 0
B. 4C{#%ZE & Disciplinary review 10 9

C. H{bMEBFTEN Other internal actions

4 Warnings 31 17
glizd Advice 89 62

4E27 Total 130

i 2016/17 ENHFEHERIERBRE  FURE - Note: Figures for 2016/17 have been adjusted following case reviews.

48  BUBRRESRERFESS | 201718 THRE
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IPCC interviews conducted

2017/18 2016/17

B RBYEERIRER
Number of Reportable

Complaint cases involved

3 3

HEEEH AR
Number of persons
attending interviews

(BRZgRD) F20M&5IA  BLESRE
BZREHE - A AS BB AT
AEHRERNZ ESRHEMAHIIOA
T RAEERSHFFHENAL BT
SETEERRTRBRALREEERR -
g7 E 2 T REERMBER -

WEBMA - HEMOZAL  BFE—2&H
ARZBHRBRFAREESGHFHES
H - £ R=FRRFER -

According to section 20 of the IPCCO, in the course of examining
CAPQO’s investigation report, the IPCC may interview any person
who is or may be able to provide information or assistance to the
Coungilin relation to the investigation report. While CAPO maintains
its investigative role, the purpose of IPCC interview is to clarify
matters with the concerned persons to obtain more comprehensive
understanding of evidence and circumstance.

During the reporting period, four persons including one
Complainant and three Complainees were invited by the IPCC to
attend interviews involving three complaint cases.

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council
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Mg R EE R E5E
Queries raised with CAPO

F2017/18F % » BEGARFERRKA
HIZH1,0008E 5 - ARBRELEER
R ERRIBENSRER - PlnE LS
ERENAR  SmEARREEZEH
KBS - REEERENNERIIZFR
HwEEES -

RIE (EESHERN) - RFERERL
BEREENEN BEEESUIIR
RRNOE  EZEKEMRETNE
B BENER  RREXTZEHEKRN
B NEHERRECEMEDE -AFZ
- BEEE A UBLE —FRARFERR
BRAEH I FRERI TIEERS
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nnfg m

AR ERE ﬁi.‘%?ﬁ“f BEEEZEmE
HRRE  Ao2@BZmRFER -
MEEAR - 659 E MR FERR

& /H\ﬁs%ﬂ’ﬁé ARAEREES B M
BhReImE  BERERELER -
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HER

Total number of
Queries:

1,090

o

X 4
-\

IPCC raised a total of 1,090 Queries to CAPO in 2017/18.
These Queries included various requests to CAPO, for
example, changing the content of the investigation reports,
providing more information and clarification regarding the
report, and the IPCC making improvement recommendations
on the Police practices and procedures, etc.

According to the IPCCO, CAPO must reply the IPCC’s Queries.
When the IPCC receives the responses from CAPO, the
vetting team will scrutinise the information, explanations and
views before passing on to the Members of vetting sub-group
for consideration of accepting the reply. When necessary, the
IPCC may raise follow-up Queries regarding the same matters,
or bring up the matters to the working level meetings for further
discussion with CAPQO. Investigation reports will be endorsed
only when the IPCC is satisfied with the explanations.

During the reporting period, 659 Queries were accepted
by CAPO. The remaining Queries were given satisfactory
explanation and resolved after further Queries by the IPCC's or
discussion with CAPO at meetings.
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding Queries raised by the IPCC:

=R D
Total number of Queries 1,090

R ERRIERER
Number of Queries accepted by CAPO 659

E4aE REFERRETNES

Total number of Number of Queries

Queries accepted by CAPO

2017/18  2016/17  2017/18 2016/17

B E Nature of Queries

AT
ﬁ_%iﬁﬁ . N 404 360 238 198
Classification of investigation results
HEERERNEFNESR
: . . 26 10 19 6
Recommended improvements to police practices and procedures
BREEERNER
" . . . 26 22 5 4
Compliance with police practices and procedures
TEEENER
. . 6 9 0 1
Reasons for exercising police power
HEBESASNITHREER
; . . ) 31 26 23 18
Comments on actions against defaulting officers
BEAEREER
Clarification of information in investigation reports 220 e 20 AL
s
ﬁ_éﬁg 184 132 109 84
Investigation thoroughness
HitE#H
Other Queries 93 106 55 59

48%) Total

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council 6 /‘
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EER S Classification of investigation results

BB 201 7/18F AT E R o iEiR Out of a total of 404 Queries raised by the IPCC in 2017/18
HA404TEEH  MERFERBELHEE regarding the classification of findings, CAPO accepted 238 of them
INE BRI 23818 - EI TS ERAS L and as a result, the investigation results of 223 allegations were

o . reclassified, including:
B 22318 - IE 9

1 8 IHH [#EAEE | ik [ EEHEE |

reclassified from “Unsubstantiated” to “Substantiated”

I6H [EZEE | ilA [EEHABE

reclassified from “Not Pursuable” to “Substantiated”

4 IGH [#sFigiE ] H5h [ EEHEE

reclassified from “Withdrawn” to “Substantiated”

I [ItERE | HIk [ EEHEE

reclassified from “No Fault” to “Substantiated”

3 I [ibEBE | ilh [BEE2ERHEE |

reclassified from “No Fault” to “Not Fully Substantiated”

15 [ A | ok [ #EEEE ]

reclassified from “No Fault” to “Unsubstantiated”

59 IHH [#EEE | oA [ EHRBE |

reclassified from “Unsubstantiated” to “No Fault”

IHH [#REE | A [ BERAHE ]

reclassified from “Not Pursuable” to “False”

BUEREHEBFEES | 201718 THES
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding changes of classifications:

201718 EEEESRBHBFT N HEATER
Changes of classification endorsed by the IPCC in 2017/18

B %28 Final classification

aN
Bt Worz2
Original classification EHREE 973 E

ERPEE Not Fully BERE W RBEE ERTRE Not s (CIN ! ]
Substantiated Substantiated Unsubstantiated  No Fault False Pursuable Withdrawn  Total
EEHEE
N/A 0 0
Substantiated 0 0 0 0 g
B2 BPEE
1 N/A 1 0 0 0 0 2
Not Fully Substantiated
HBLRE
1 1
Unsubstantiated 8 8 VA =Y 0 2 ! bl
it g 7 26 N/A 5 9 1 47
No Fault
EfATR 0 0 0 3 N/A 3 0 6
False
BLEE
4 1 34 7 N/A 1 47
Not Pursuable 0 L
REFHEE
4 1 7
Withdrawn . 2 2 & 2

PEN - BEESEREIR 74518 [REE|EA  Moreover, the IPCC endorsed 45 counts of “Substantiated Other
BT | myiei B Aa23lELKeexe  Than Reported” allegations; of these, 23 were registered after the
B ERE TN - BANE162 B4 IPCC raised Queries. Another 16 incidents were recorded as

. . “‘Outwith” matters*.
B [EXEE] *o

*[EYEE| REIMERLEREHRSHNETE - & * An "Outwith” matter refers to any breach of discipline or Police Force orders that
L EIEAFEBEPWRE - BREFASITES has been disclosed in the course of a complaint investigation but is not closely
{% o - related to the complaint.

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council
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MEEKRERANERFIES

RIECEESED) E8iER(1)(c) » BEES
RIBLERX R AR A oI BRI RE S 2R
RHVRAR PR ZIE » MERIERRRKTT
BEEFELEZ - REHR - BEESHK
EHRERMIZFIRN T 261825 ©

EREGREHANER

EEenARFERRIELER - UHEE
AR EZY MR ER A BETTERER -
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ITEEEERH

BEHN  EEEREBAEHEER
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Recommended improvements to police
practices and procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make
recommendations to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief
Executive if it identifies any fault or deficiency in a police practice or
procedure that has led to or might lead to a complaint. During this
reporting period, the IPCC suggested 26 improvement measures
to the Police.

Compliance with police practices and
procedures

The IPCC may raise Queries with CAPO to ascertain if the police
officers involved in a complaint case have complied with relevant
police practices and procedures in exercising their constabulary
powers. During this reporting period, 26 Queries were raised
under this category.

Reasons for exercising police power

The use of police power by officers in the discharge of their duties
is also a concern of the IPCC. During this reporting period, the
IPCC raised six Queries with respect to reasons for the use of
police power.,

Comments on actions against defaulting officers

While the dispensing of advice or disciplinary action to police
officers is a matter for the Commissioner of Police, the IPCC will
examine the actions taken or to be taken to ascertain whether they
commensurate with the seriousness of the offences. The IPCC
raised 31 Queries on such actions during the reporting period.

Clarification of information in investigation
reports

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 320 Queries regarding
the ambiguous points in investigation reports. For example,
CAPO was requested to provide more background information of
complaint cases.

Investigation thoroughness

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 184 Queries regarding
the thoroughness of police investigations. These Queries included
requests to CAPO for more in-depth investigation by conducting
interview with witness and collection of more evidence.
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Time required for examining complaint cases

%V? E 1 ;’i ﬁﬁﬁE%ﬁZﬁ*lﬁgﬂ gyEs¢  The number of days required to examine a complaint case
B . BeEE e B OS[F) R RS BB RR B, depends on a number of factors, such as the complexity
SEERSTE o M 6 s Y R 1 12 of the case and whether the IPCC agrees with CAPO'’s views.

fr P ’\\In'f o T\i ~ Complaints that are relatively minor or frivolous in nature are

o B DEBBELARR] RRETR handled via “Informal Resolution” and Expression of Dissatisfaction

MEHIEIE - TARREEEAERIER  Mechanism. The complaint cases requiring full investigation are

MEZTGRIRFER - HEMREEE - T of a more complicated nature and it is more time consuming to

EREITERE - meticulously scrutinising this type of complaint cases.

EZERAEHEHEB2016/17FEE The average number of days required to examine an investigated
#133K FFRZE2017/18FEHI96K © case dropped from 133 days in 2016/17 to 96 days in 2017/18.

2017/18 2016/17

BRZERFRHFEHBEH

Average number of days 96 133
required to examine a

complaint case

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council 5 6
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gzEastEl

Observers Scheme

2017/18 EHER4EE] Total number of observation : 1 ,999

2016/17 EHZE L& Total number of observation : 1 ,81 7

AL HMNERHR RN SRR

Number of scheduled and surprise observations

2017/18 2016/17
A. Ta5t%HE Scheduled 1,960 1,799
B. FR4ETE4 Without prior appointment 39 18

4820 Total

HETEMNESRUR TS ERF

Number of observations of interview and collection of evidence

2017/18 2016/17
A. HiZET MW Interview 1,761 1,570
B. :EE{E U E Collection of evidence 238 247

4850 Total

2017118%F » EEEMEZEREBREH#E
71,9998 %8 REFEAH10% @ &
PIBALTHERA1,960% © RETEXHNAE
39k ° 1,999 REEH - B1,761 X 2H
REH - HH238NSERBEKENT
=K
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Under the Observers Scheme, 1,999 observations were
conducted by Members and Observers of the IPCC in the year
2017/18, representing a 10% increase compared to last year.
Among them, 1,960 were scheduled observations and 39 were
conducted without prior appointment. Of the 1,999 observations,
1,761 involved the conducting of interviews and 238 involved the
collection of evidence.
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Number of observations attended by IPCC Observers and

notifications received

2017/18 2016/17

A. HEEE Observations attended 1,999 1,817

B. il Notifications received 2,116 2,068

Attendance rate

C. it (BRE/#=EEM)

94.5% 87.9%

(Observations / Notifications received)

R EESFRE

RFERRE S-a_ETﬁE”JIa/RT i
TEHHE TFLI& R TEZEETOR
A8/NEFHY B AN © Ezmmsfﬁ BErex
IR FE R R, 116EBA -

EABREHRAN  BEEeBREEET
1,999 R - BREEBRSEMEREK
& (FEERNMNA.5%  HELREE
FEFT6.6% -

Notifications from CAPO

CAPO has agreed that, insofar as practicable, the IPCC will be
notified at least 48 hours in advance of any impending interview
or collection of evidence. In 2017/18, 2,116 notifications were
received from CAPO.

During this reporting period, IPCC Observers attended 1,999
observations, including interviews and the collection of evidence,
comprising 94.6% of the notifications received. The attendance
rate increased by 6.6% compared to last year.

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council
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Notifiable Complaints

BAERGFEREF

Number of Notifiable Complaint cases

2017/18 2016/17

EEETERNANERFER e -
Notifiable Complaint cases examined by the IPCC
EF SR AAERRR - 5

Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints

RIE CEESHRM) FofF  RFERR
AEHREESRIANSRFNERER
ZAHRAR ]Iﬂ#%?lﬁ%xﬂﬁ 7R B
SRHFHIEH c FELIRRERRFE
FRERAERRS - BERRRERRE
WA EE RN ERRBHEEENE
BRI

EREHA  EESER T765RANE
RFNERRE - WEFRAH LT14.9% -

REZE  EPNRRHFEREEESE
& W E R R AR E IR o

FE A i T )

Under section 9 of the IPCCO, CAPO must regularly submit a
summary of Notifiable Complaints to the IPCC for examination and
explain the reasons for categorising the complaints as Notifiable
Complaints. If the IPCC considers that any of these cases should
be classified as Reportable Complaints instead, the IPCC will
give relevant suggestions to CAPO, and CAPO will then need to
reconsider the categorisation.

During the reporting period, summaries of 765 Notifiable
Complaints were examined by the IPCC, an increase of 4.9%
compared to the previous year. After the examination, 11 cases
were re-categorised as Reportable Complaints as per the IPCC'’s
recommendations.

Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM)
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To handle minor complaints more effectively and make optimal use
of investigation resources, the IPCC and CAPO introduced the
EDM in 2015 as an altemative to the formal complaint investigation
process for handling minor complaints.
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Number of EDM cases

Through the EDM, a Complainant can directly reflect his/her
dissatisfaction and views to the commander of the Formation
concerned. If the Complainant is still not satisfied with the
results of the EDM, he/she may lodge a formal complaint. In
order to maintain the integrity of the EDM and ensure appropriate
categorisation, CAPO is required to regularly submit a gist of the
EDM cases to the IPCC for vetting.

During the reporting period, the IPCC examined 866 EDM
cases, a decrease of 29.5% compared to the previous
year. Among these cases, 11 cases were re-categorised as
Reportable Complaints as per the IPCC's recommendations.
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Cases re-categorised as Notifiable Complaints
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In order to enhance the transparency, the IPCC has set up various
channels for the public to put up enquiries or express opinion.
During the reporting period, the IPCC received 9,322 public
enquiries via telephone, post, email, fax and in person. Excluding
enquiries that are not directly related to the IPCC, those regarding
the two-tier police complaints system, including those relating
to complaint cases and the Observers Scheme, were handled
and followed-up within the timeframe specified under the IPCC’s
performance pledge.
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Complaint cases related to the use of
mobile phones
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Case 1 : Two police officers inappropriately recorded CCTV video with
their mobile phones, indirectly leading to the leakage of case-

related video clip

B WRFA

Allegations Complainee(s)
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Neglect of Duty e —
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Case background

In this complaint case, a man who was suspected of having
unsuccessiully attempted to steal from a convenience store
returmed to the scene. The man stabbed a shopkeeper with
a knife and fled. The shopkeeper sustained fatal injuries and
passed away a few days later.  On the same day after the
incident, two Police Constables (Complainees 1 and 2) viewed
the CCTV footages at the crime scene. A staff member of
the convenience store claimed that the two Complainees had
recorded the subject CCTV video clips with their mobile phones.
Hours later, the person in charge of the convenient store saw
two video clips taken by the Police Constables on intemet.  The
suspect was located and arrested one day after the incident.
The person in charge of the convenience store wrote a
complaint letter to CAPO that two Complainees, after using
their mobile phones to record the CCTV footages, failed to
keep the footages in confidence which led to leakage of video
clips on interet [Allegation: Neglect of Duty].
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CAPO’s investigation

When interviewed by CAPO, the two Complainees admitted
recording the CCTV footages with their private mobile phones, and
shared the clips via a mobile messaging application chat group
with colleagues working in the district where the crime occurred.
Their intention was to alert these colleagues to apprehend the
suspect as soon as possible. Both of them denied uploading the
video clips to Intemet. They claimed that the newly created chat
group was a temporary one and was deleted immediately upon
the arrest of the suspect. CAPO further investigated the source
of video upload and found out that it was not done by police
officers. CAPO contacted relevant persons for further information
and assistance in investigation but the efforts were in vain.

CAPO considered that although the two Complainees failed to
observe the Police General Orders by using their private mobile
phones for official duty, they explained that their purpose were to
ensure the suspect would be arrested as soon as possible. They
also deleted the chat group immediately after the suspect was
arrested to minimise the risk of video clips leakage. In addition,
the available evidence strongly supported that two Complainees
did not upload the footages. CAPO therefore classified the
alegation as “Not Fully Substantiated” and recommended
‘Advices” against the two Complainees.

IPCC’s observations

The IPCC disagreed with the classification of investigation result
regarding the above allegation. The IPCC was of the view that
the crux of matter was whether the Complainees’ negligence
led to the footages being leaked to the public. The rationale for
the Complainees’ sharing of footages with their colleagues was
not the determining factor for the allegation. Although they did
not upload the footages and had tried their utmost to minimise
the risk of leakage, the available facts indicated that their actions
indirectly led to the leakage. According to chapter 19 of the Police
General Orders, a police officer shall seek prior approval from a
supervisor before using personal mobile phone for official duty
purposes; and the transmission of sensitive or classified data by
any means of social media and instant messaging applications
are prohibited.

Based on the above reasons, the IPCC recommended that the
allegation should be re-classified as “Substantiated” and the
penalty should be raised to reflect the seriousness of the incident.
CAPO accepted these recommendations and re-classified the
allegation as “Substantiated”. The two Complainees were given
warnings.
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A police officer inappropriately recorded video with his mobile
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phone, leading to its circulation on the Internet
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Complainee(s)

Allegations
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Original classification(s) by CAPO
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a dispute with two passengers. He claimed that the passengers
caused the glass of one of his taxi windows to shatter when
they were alighting, and hence made a report to the Police.
The Police were suspicious regarding how the window was
broken, and suspected that the taxi driver had adjusted the taxi
window so that the glass would be shattered when a passenger
opened / closed the door, in order to extort compensation from
passengers.

To determine how the window was broken, the police arranged
for a Government Chemist to conduct a simulation test (the Test)
on Complainant’s taxi. During the Test, a Police Constable (PC)
demonstrated how the window was broken automatically when
someone closed the taxi door. A video on the Test was later
found online, describing the Complainant’s taxi as a “black taxi”.
The Complainant alleged that the investigating police officers
failed to handle and investigate his case properly, and thus
lodged a complaint to CAPO. One of the allegations concemed
“Misconduct”. The Complainant speculated that the PC who
attended the Test had told the media that the taxi was a “black
taxi” and leaked the video, leading to its circulation on internet.

CAPO’s investigation

The PC denied the allegation and made no comments about
Complainant or his taxi. CAPO reviewed the video footage of
the Test and found that the “black taxi” commentary was added
by the media during post-production. Since there was no
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evidence to prove that the leakage of the video was caused by
the PC, the allegation regarding “Misconduct” was classified as
“Unsubstantiated”.

As a result of the CAPO’s investigation about the leakage of video
on the Test, it was found that there had been similar incidents
in which taxi drivers attempted to extort compensation from
passengers for damage to the windows of their taxis during the
same period. Therefore, several police officers who were working
on similar cases also attended the Test to observe. Among
them was a Senior Inspector who recorded the Test using his
personal mobile phone and sent the video clip to his subordinate
(another PC) via a mobile messaging application, for compiling a
report on another case of similar nature. The subordinate further
disseminated the video footage to other officers for experience
sharing and educational purposes. However, both Senior
Inspector and his subordinate denied having uploaded the video
clip to the Internet.  Since neither officers sought permission to
film the Test or forward the video to others, they were advised by
their supervisors to exercise caution when handling investigation-
related information.

IPCC’s observations

The IPCC disagreed with CAPO's handling of the leakage of
the video footage on the Test. The Council considered that
the incident was serious, as the preamble to the video footage
revealed the licence number of the Complainant's taxi and
particulars of the Test. In addition, the video was filmed solely
for compiling a report and interal reference instead of for public
circulation. According to chapter 19 of the Police General Orders,
a police officer shall seek prior approval in order to use a personal
mobile phone for official duty purposes; and the transmission of
sensitive or classified data by means of social media and instant
messaging applications are not permitted. Therefore, it was
inappropriate and reckless for the Senior Inspector to record
the Test with his mobile phone and send the video clip to his
subordinate who then re-sent it to other colleagues.

Based on the above reasoning, the IPCC recommended that two
"Substantiated Other Than Reported” counts of “Neglect of Duty”
be registered against each of the two police officers. CAPO
finally subscribed to IPCC's view, and each officer was given an
advice without Divisional Record File entry.

Regarding improper use of personal mobile phones and instant
messaging applications by police officers for official duties, the
IPCC considers that the Police are responsible to review the
existing guidelines to ensure compliance. In addition, IPCC
also recommended the Police to study the feasibility to allow
certain flexibility in justified situations where officers may seek
retrospective permission to use their private phones for carrying
out certain duties. CAPO accepted these recommendations and
agreed to review relevant guidelines and report to the IPCC in
due course.
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Police officer inappropriately used mobile phone to record

Complainant’s personal data
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Complainee(s)

Allegations
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ERE= Case background
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— N FAEEERE ALK car away from a carpark into a trail, he failed to give way to a
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police saloon which forced the police saloon to evade abruptly
to avoid collision. The Police Constable (PC) who drove the
police saloon stopped the Complainant and informed him that
he would be summonsed for “Careless Driving”.  He also
requested the Complainant to produce his HKID card and driving
licence for record purpose. At the material time, a colleague of
the Complainant sat in the front passenger seat of the private
car. The Complainant lodged a complaint to CAPO and alleged
that the PC inappropriately recorded his personal data onto a
notepad and took photo of his HKID card and driving licence
using his personal mobile phone [Allegation: Misconduct].
Subsequently, the Complainant pleaded guilty to the charge of
“Careless Driving” and was fined accordingly.

CAPO’s investigation

During CAPO's investigation, the PC claimed that the scene was
not a suitable location for him to record incident details entry, thus
he copied Complainant's personal particulars onto his notepad.
When he retuned to police station, he immediately recorded
the details on the police notebook, shredded the relevant page
from his notepad and then disposed of the remains by means of
confidential materials disposal bag. The PC denied having taken
photo of the Complainant's HKID card and driving licence using
his mobile phone. He stated that at the material time, he placed
his notepad, Complainant’s HKID card and driving licence on the
hood of his police saloon so that he could take out his mobile
phone to check the street name of the incident location using
mobile application.
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CAPO did not consider any impropriety for the PC to record the
Complainant’s personal details on his notepad, as he had shredded
the relevant record after use. Police guidelines do not prohibit an
officer from recording information in documents other than official
notebook, as long as Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance is adhered
to. CAPQO considered that it would be impracticable to require PC
to make organised and detailed entries on the official notebook
entries when PC would be heavily engaged in the investigation at
the scene.

With regard to the allegation concerning the PC taking photo of
Complainant's personal data using his mobile phone, CAPO
reviewed the video clip captured by the dash camera in the
Complainant’s car. The video footage showed that the PC placed
the Complainant's HKID card and driving licence on the hood of
saloon, and then he used his mobile phone. However, the mobile
application being used was not captured. In addition, CAPO
also enquired the witnesses who indicated that he did not notice
whether the PC had photographed the Complainant's personal
particulars.  As there was no independent evidence supporting
either party in their counter-allegations, CAPO classified the
“Misconduct” allegation as “Unsubstantiated”.

IPCC’s observations

The IPCC disagreed with the classification of investigation result
regarding the above allegation. The IPCC opined that though the
video footage captured by the dash camera system could not
show the mobile application being used by the PC at the material
time, the video footage revealed that the PC had put his mobile
phone horizontally when he used his phone above the hood of
police saloon, where the Complainant's HKID card and driving
license were placed. This action lasted about 5 seconds. The
IPCC was of the view that the PC appeared taking pictures rather
than checking the location and the actions of the PC might cause
suspicion on the creditability of his explanation that he took out his
mobile phone only for checking the map.

Although the IPCC considered that there was insufficient evidence
to substantiate the allegation, the above video footage could be
regarded as some reliable evidence to support the Complainant's
allegation. Therefore, the IPCC recommended the allegation of
“Misconduct” against the PC to be changed from “Unsubstantiated”
to "Not Fully Substantiated”.

CAPOQ finally subscribed to IPCC’s view, and the PC was given an
advice without Divisional Record File entry.
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Complaint case relating to reclassification of
investigation results
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Police officers who were alleged of Unnecessary Use of

Authority and Neglect of Duty during antinarcotic raid were

found “No Fault”
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Case background

During an antinarcotic raid, a Sergeant (SGT) and other police
officers discovered a small amount of suspected dangerous
drugs, smoking apparatus and a pair of handcuffs from a
flat.  The SGT arrested four tourists (including Complainant)
therein for “Trafficking in a Dangerous Drug”, “Possession of
Equipment Fit for Smoking Dangerous Drug” and “Possession
of Offensive Weapon”. The SGT also seised the Complainant's
mobile phone, tablet computer and a number of exhibits for
further investigation. Later on, the Complainant and three
arrested persons were released by Court unconditionally due to
insufficient evidence to support the charges. The Complainant
was dissatisfied with the SGT for arresting her and seising her
mobile phone, tablet computer and passport without justification
[Allegation 1: Unnecessary Use of Authority]. Moreover, the
Complainant alleged that the Senior Inspector (SIP) failed to
liaise with Immigration Department to extend her stay in Hong
Kong for collecting properties kept by the Police as case exhibits
[Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty].
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CAPO’s investigation

CAPO repeatedly contacted the Complainant by telephone,
email and mail to seek her assistance in the investigation of
complaint, but failed to reach her. As CAPO could not reach
the Complainant to acquire further information to follow up this
complaint case, CAPO classified the above two allegations as
“Not Pursuable”.

IPCC’s observations

The IPCC disagreed with CAPO's classification of investigation
result for the above-mentioned allegations. The IPCC was of
the view that even if CAPO could not reach the Complainant, the
appropriateness of police officer's handling can still be judged
based on information available. The IPCC therefore requested
CAPO to re-examine the complaint case and re-classify two
allegations based on the result thereof,

CAPO’s re-investigation

CAPO considered that as suspected dangerous drugs,
smoking apparatus and a pair of handcuffs were found inside
the flat, it was reasonable for the Police to suspect that the
Complainant and three other persons committed the offence
of “Trafficking / possession of Dangerous Drug”, “Possession of
Equipment Fit for Smoking Dangerous Drug” and “Possession of
Offensive Weapon”. The subsequent arrests and seising of the
Complainant's mobile phone and tablet computers as exhibits
were thus justified. The purpose of doing so was to collect
evidence for the offence of “Trafficking/ possession of Dangerous
Drug’. In addition, the Complainant’s passport was not seised as
an exhibit but was transferred to the Court for the Complainant's
first appearance at the court. As no impropriety was found on
the part of the SGT during the investigation process, CAPO has
reclassified Allegation 1 from “Not Pursuable” to “No Fault”.

For Allegation 2, upon the release of the Complainant and the other
arrested persons by Court, the SIP had immediately arranged
with Immigration Department to extend their periods of stay in
Hong Kong and informed them to collect personal properties
from police station on the same day. All the arrested persons
retrieved their belongings on that day except the Complainant
who could not be located by the Police thereafter.  In the end,
the Complainant retrieved her belongings from police station two
weeks later.

CAPO considered that the SIP had followed the procedures
and had taken all practical and reasonable steps to retun
the properties to the Complainant without any undue delay.
Therefore, CAPO reclassified allegation 2 from “Not Pursuable” to
“No Fault”. The IPCC agreed with CAPO’s revised classification
and endorsed CAPQO’s findings in this case.
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To discharge the function under section 8(1)(c) of the
IPCCO, the IPCC makes timely recommendations to the
Police whenever it identifies any fault or deficiency in the
police practices or procedures while vetting the Reportable
Complaint reports. The IPCC Secretariat will monitor
improvement-related matters via “Post-endorsement Issues
Follow-up” with CAPO. The Council will also discuss the
implementation progress of the recommended improvements
at quarterly Joint Meetings with the Police to ensure their
proper follow-up with a view to further enhance the service
quality of the Police.

During the reporting period, the IPCC made 26 improvement
recommendations to the Police. These recommendations
can be broadly grouped into three categories: (1) enhancement
of police guidelines and practices; (2) improvement in the user-
friendliness of the computer record system; and (3) giving
advice to and strengthening knowledge-building and training
for police officers.

Provided below are examples of improvement recommendations
illustrated by related complaint cases.

(1) Enhancement of police guidelines and
practices

a. Modification of police guidelines on the use of
personal mobile phones for official duty purposes

Smartphones bring convenience to our daily lives. However,
improper use of smart phones by police officers may result
in violation of police guidelines or lead to infringement of
privacy issue. In the past few years, there were a number
of complaints related to the use of personal mobile phones
for official duty purposes by on-duty police officers. CAPO’s
investigations revealed data leakage issues in a few complaint
cases in which the police officers concemed had allegedly
violated the provisions in the “Police General Orders” by
recording sensitive data on their personal mobile phones
without seeking approval from their supervisors, leading to
the leakage of the data on social media which resulted in
unrestricted access of these sensitive information by the
public.
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The IPCC is concerned about the trend of violation of police
guidelines due to unauthorised use of personal mobile phones
by police officers. The IPCC opined that the police guidelines
relating to use of personal mobile phones should be reviewed
and updated timely to reflect the latest development in the
society. In addition, police officers should be communicated
to attain sufficient understanding of the considerations for
the modification and application of the guidelines such that
violation of guidelines and infringement of privacy issues
could be reduced while work efficiency of the police officers
could also be enhanced. The IPCC therefore recommended
the Police to deepen their understanding of situations
involving the use of personal mobile phones, review the
‘Police General Orders” to ensure relevant guidelines are
clear and pragmatic for policy officers to make reference and
comply with. Furthermore, the IPCC suggested the Police
consider the appropriateness of allowing some flexibility for
the police officers to use personal mobile phones in warranted
situations. Officers might seek retrospective permission for
using their personal mobile phones for official duty purposes
and proper handling of acquired personal data including timely
removal as appropriate.

The Police accepted the IPCC’s recommendations and
formed a working group to review the relevant Force Policy
and guidelines. After the review, the Police planned to
modify the relevant sections in “Police General Orders” and
‘Force Procedures Manual” in several aspects, including
more flexibility being allowed for officers to use personal
mobile phones for performing official duty under justifiable
situations. The IPCC will closely follow up on the revisions
and progress in updating guidelines by the Police; as well as
the Police’s plan to explain and introduce related guidelines
to the front line police officers with a view that the updated
guidelines could achieve the objective in reducing related
complaints and effectively enhancing the service quality and
efficiency of the police force.

b. Suggested improvement on procedures regarding
the Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM)

The aim of EDM is to provide Complainants with an alternative
to filing a formal complaint for cases with minor nature. This
not only can effectively cope with dissatisfaction expressed
by Complainants but also make optimum use of investigation
resources for cases that are of a more serious nature. To
help Complainants fully understand the purpose of EDM
and the available options for handling their complaints,
CAPO officers are required to play an audio-recorded EDM
preamble at the beginning of their conversation with the
Complainants.
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During the investigation of a complaint, however, the
Complainant was dissatisfied that CAPO dealt with his case
by way of EDM without explaining to him the mechanism and
seeking his consent. Therefore, he filed a complaint against
certain CAPQO officers.

Upon review of CAPO’s investigation report, the IPCC found
that CAPO officers would only play the audio-recorded EDM
preamble during telephone interviews to explain the complaint
procedures but such explanation were not provided in face-
to-face interviews. In IPCC’s opinion, CAPO should improve
their operational practice by adopting the same arrangement
to explain the mechanism to and seek consent from the
Complainant regardless of whether the interview would be
taken over phone or face-to-face . This is to ensure that the
Complainants understand the choices available and their
rights which will help avoid similar complaints in the future.

The Police accepted IPCC’s recommendations that the
audio-recorded EDM preamble should also be played
to Complainants in face-to-face interviews to enable
their understanding of the purpose of the EDM and other
available options for handling a complaint. In addition, CAPO
officers will record, either as a statement or in the police
notebook, the broadcast of the preamble, the explanation
to the Complainants of other available options for handling
a complaint, and the Complainant's decision regarding the
EDM. The Complainants will then be invited to sign and
confirm the documentation. IPCC considered that the above
measures would avoid mis-understanding and enable the
adoption of uniform best practice for the EDM mechanism.

(2) Improvement in the user-friendliness of
the computer record system

Suggested improvement to the transport record
system

Having a major role in traffic enforcement, the Police frequently
encounter members of the public when carrying out their
duties. Checking the driver's driving licence is often the first
thing a traffic police officer does in almost every scenario. An
accurate and user-friendly recording system will facilitate the
frontline police officer in performing his duty efficiently.
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In one of the complaint cases, a taxi driver (the Complainant),
whose driving instructor’s licence (DIL) had been suspended,
was involved in a traffic accident. The police officers who
attended the scene made enquiry with Console about the
Complainant’'s driving licence status. After checking the
Police’s transport record system, the Console officer told the
police officer at the scene that all classes of the Complainant’s
driving licence had been suspended. The police officers
therefore arrested the Complainant for “Driving without a
Valid Driving Licence” and took him to the police station. The
Complainant was eventually released unconditionally as it
was later confirmed that only his DIL had been suspended
while other classes of his driving licences were still valid. Six
months later, the Complainant encountered a similar situation
and the Console officer was again unsure about the validity
of his driving licence. Though not arrested, the Complainant
was taken to the police station for further enquiry.

The IPCC was of the view that the recurrence of similar
misunderstanding was a result of Police’s transport record
system being somewhat not user-friendly. As the Console
officers were not familiar with the transport record system
and codes used, they were not able to provide accurate
information to the frontline officers. The IPCC considered this
unsatisfactory as it caused inconvenience and hassle to the
Complainant for being taken to the police station twice.

In order to prevent recurrence of similar mistakes and enhance
the work efficiency of the frontline and Console officers, the
IPCC recommended the Police to review and improve the
user-friendliness of the record system and avoid overusing
abbreviations or codes, so that both Console officers and
frontline officers could easily understand the meaning of the
codes and discharge their duties efficiently and properly. In
the interim, Console officers would be advised to consult the
relevant police units and the Transport Department ifthere were
ambiguities so as to avoid unnecessary misunderstanding
and complaints. At the same time, relevant training should be
provided to Console officers to ensure users are familiar with
the meanings of the codes. The above recommendations
were accepted by the Police. The IPCC will continue to
monitor the implementation of these recommendations.
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(3) Giving advice to and Strengthening

knowledge-building and
police officers

training for

Reinforced training on the handling of domestic violence
cases

Domestic violence can cause serious conseqguence if not
being appropriately handled. The Police, being the first
point of contact for reported domestic violence, have an
essential role in ensuring that victims of domestic violence
are protected and supported, and perpetrators are held
accountable timely for the harm they have caused. It is
important that frontline police officers can handle domestic
violence reports effectively and assess the risks appropriately
as the conseqguences for such incidents could be serious
and might be a matter of life and death.

In one complaint case, a Senior Police Constable (SPC) and
two Police Constables (PC) handled a dispute between the
Complainant and her ex-husband. The Complainant reported
that her ex-husband had assaulted her 11-year-old son.
The SPC, however, merely classified the case as “Dispute”
despite the injuries found on the Complainant’'s son. CAPO's
investigation revealed that the SPC's decision to classify the
case as “Dispute” was wrong. The case should have been
classified as “Family Violence (Crime)” for further investigation
by a crime unit.

The IPCC considered that the wrong classification of
the domestic violence case to “Dispute” by the police
officer might put those helpless victims who were already
vulnerable under additional risks. This would also result in
long-term adverse impact to victims psychologically and
physically. In view of the above, the IPCC recommended the
Police to regularly review the classification and assessment
criteria of domestic violence cases to ensure that frontline
police officers fully understand the assessment criteria and
handle cases appropriately. In addition, the IPCC was of
the view that the Police should promote the knowledge
of frontline officers on the handling of domestic violence
cases and provide professional training to them to ensure
the domestic violence cases are handled properly in a
timely manner.,



ETEMETSNER  URIBXERD
ZECMASRE B MET I FOREAN
FoRiZ 2 H o UhSh - EHFAB A BBE
TMETREEVYEREESRNEM - ENE
ALk E=A - REZEAREER
FEAR{AIAR BRI LD R ERIERKER N

R -

The Police accepted the IPCC’'s recommendations and
affirmed that the subject matter is now included in the
compulsory curriculum at all levels of police training. Besides,
police officers will refresh their skills through refresher training
and reference to the latest information posted on the Palice’s
e-leaming portal. The Police have also given all frontline
police officers appropriate advice on how to classify and
handle domestic violence cases, citing the instant complaint
case as an example.
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In order to discharge its function of promoting public awareness
of the IPCC’s role under section 8(1)(e) of the IPCCO, the
Council continues to proactively leverage on various channels
to closely engage with stakeholders including the Police, the
community representatives, the youth, interest groups, and
monitoring bodies from other countries and areas to introduce
the IPCC’s work and functions to them. During the reporting
period, the IPCC expanded the School Programme and visited a
number of District Principals’ Associations (DPAs) to solicit their
support.  Through proactive outreaching initiatives, the IPCC
hopes to stay connected with the wider community and deepen
their understanding of its work.

201744108 E201853A22H
10 April 2017 to 22 March 2018

To enhance the youth’s understanding of the IPCC, the IPCC has
been promoting its School Programme since November 2016,
to introduce Hong Kong's two-tier police complaints system and
the IPCC’s functions to teachers and students from local tertiary
institutions, as well as secondary and primary schools. As the
School Programme was well received by participating teachers
and students last year, the IPCC will further expand and reinforce
the Programme this year, hoping to reach out to more teachers
and students.
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During this reporting period, the IPCC was invited by the
Department of Journalism & Communication of Hong Kong Shue
Yan University and the Department of Journalism of Hong Kong
Baptist University to speak at the General Assembly and a major
course lecture respectively. Enthusiastic response was received
from the audience when the IPCC introduced the functions
and roles of the IPCC and discussed complaint cases that it
had vetted with over 500 university students and lecturers. The
IPCC also visited 16 secondary schools and primary schools,
reaching out to over 2,200 teachers and students through
21 visits. During Liberal Studies classes, moming and school
assemblies, the IPCC's principles and procedures for vetting
complaint investigation reports were illustrated to teachers and
students through broadcasting episodes of the IPCC Files series,
interactive games and discussing of cases. IPCC Members and
representatives from the Secretariat vetting team also shared their
experiences in vetting cases.

The participating teachers and students were very enthusiastic.
In particular, they were very interested in the nature of complaints,
case vetting procedures, classification of investigation results,
the rights and obligations of citizens, and even how to become
a member of the IPCC's vetling team. Questionnaires were
distributed to all participants after every presentation to solicit
their views and to evaluate the effectiveness of the activities.
The majority of students agreed that the activities enhanced their
understanding of the IPCC, and over 80% of students were able
to correctly indicate the IPCC’s functions and procedures for filing
complaints.

The IPCC aims to promote its values, i.e. independence,
impartiality and integrity, among the youth through activities and
presentations under the School Programme, and enable them to
understand their rights and responsibilities of making a complaint.
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Engaging with stakeholders

Visits to the District Principals’ Associations (DPASs)
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9 May 2017 to 15 March 2018
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To promote its School Programme, the IPCC has been taking
the initiative to visit principals’ associations in various districts
since May 2017. The IPCC introduces its work and the School
Programme to principals, soliciting their support and participation.
During the reporting period, Miss Lisa Lau Man-man (Chairman of
the Publicity and Survey Committee), five Members and Secretary-
General paid visits to 14 DPAs, where they introduced the two-tier
police complaints system to attending principals and listened to
their valuable feedback on the IPCC's activities.

Leveraging on its connection with the DPAs, the IPCC aims to
develop a closer bond with students and various youth groups,
with a view to enhancing their understanding about the IPCC's
functions.
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Engaging with the Police
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The main duty of the IPCC is to monitor the Palice in handling
Reportable Complaints against police officers. It is thus essential
for the Council to maintain communication with representatives
from different departments and levels of the Police Force to better
understand their duties and operational circumstances. Such
regular exchanges would faciltate the IPCC’s examination of
complaints in an independent, just and fair manner, as well as
offering timely and feasible suggestions to improve the service
quality of the Police Force.



BEEeFZEMEFEFENNZREEN  Details of the police engagement activities during the year are as
T : follows:
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HERIFERTREE —RFHTA  Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen (Vice-Chairman) and seven Members
R o o EBFREEHMBNIEERT AT visited Yuen Long District.  Police representatives briefed the
MEBEGIBETERILREB N - &5 755t attending Members on the crimes involving non-ethnic Chinese,
RIS RS B, . and street prostitution in the district. Views were also exchanged
’ ? - on the trends of complaints.
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Mr Herman Hui Chung-shing was invited by the Service
Quality Wing of the Police Force to attend the 2016/17
Awards Presentation Ceremony for Service Excellence and
Service Quality Award Scheme.
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Ir Prof Vincent Ho, Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing, Mr Wilson Kwong
Wing-tsuen, Ms Ann Au Chor-kwan, Ms Melissa Kaye Pang and
IPCC Secretariat staff took part in the Sports Day organised by the
Police Service Quality Wing.
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At the pre-1 July procession briefing, Mr
Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and
eight attending Members exchanged views
with the Police on its latest plan for handling
of the public order event.

2017%7R1H
1 July 2017

NBZEEN1TEMEERBEHIASEZE  Nne Members and 17 Secretariat staff conducted an on-site
+—ETEH - BERH  EEATERHIE observation of the 1 July 2017 procession. The observation
B LEEEESER  BAAA ST AR k%egan with z %rieﬂn% at the Police command Centr(\a/. MemFE)eLs
BT Ao BE 3 ULpe o Asmamus o g 1NEN proceeded to the procession starting point in Victoria Park,
}EE#TE ,!‘_5 . i[ HEATER RIS 28 and continued to observe along the procession route in Causeway
FEEITEER - Bay and Wan Chai districts.
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2018%3H13H
13 March 2018

Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman) and 10 Members visited
the Emergency Unit Hong Kong Island (EU HKI). Representatives
of the EU introduced to the Members their work, complaint
related issues, their gears including arms and body worn video
cameras. Council Members also took this opportunity to learn
more about the challenges faced by frontline officers in their
daily operations.

AMEEEBR A SBEERMWERERE
—RZB LB N\B L FEEFKAES P
DEFLVFEEIRE ([DABL])
WEREFRXREN D FERFINR
g UARDHAFRLHESR  RIEFIILR
BEE P

Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), six Members and
representatives from the Secretariat visited the Junior Police
Call Permanent Activity Centre and Integrated Youth Training
Camp ("JPC Camp”) at Pat Heung, Yuen Long where they were
briefed by the Police Force on the aim of the Junior Police
Call Scheme, as well as the background, facilities and training
concepts of the JPC Camp.

Report 2017/18 | The Independent Police Complaints Council



FEPE ‘ Bl EHELSR - CHAPTER 4 | Engaging with stakeholders

HEMGEREE

Liaison with other organisations

—= 2017£4A7H
@ 7 April 2017

o S eV e S L L T
g

IPCC Members were invited to attend a courtesy luncheon
hosted by the then Chief Executive at Government House.

.EI 201755H28%F31H
e'“ 28 to 31 May 2017

ELEENERKE —E2SABEZEIEN—EF
REENENEAASTREN AN ZENE
FENSH  HENEAAREEWEHE
(Canadian Association for Civilian Oversight
of Law Enforcement) B #ta)EF &% - KL
[RRER—ARNII] REE  BHeX
HREBTIEMRFRENZEIRER °

A senior vetting officer and a vetting officer from the IPCC Secretariat attended the annual conference organised
by the Canadian Association for Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement (CACOLE) at St. John's, Newfoundland
and Labrador, Canada. Themed “Civilian Oversight — Perspectives from the Inside Out”, the conference provided a
platform for attendees to share their views on policing and complaint handling issues.

o 20174£6 5136
@555 13 June 2017

&

FIHMEEF  HERBETELAEHRWER
F HEREALELERESHEERKEZE

ERENRKREEH  YAZEENEETEN
MERBIRFERTENREESNRBNE

]

Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), Hon Tony
Tse Wai-chuen (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Richard
Yu (Secretary-General) met with a delegation
led by Mr Su Quangui, head of the Supervision
Committee of Guangdong Provincial Public
Security Department. During the meeting, the
two-tier police complaints system in Hong
Kong, as well as the organisation and functions
of the IPCC were introduced.
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Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) was invited by Ta Kung Intemational Media College to act as the keynote speaker at
a seminar for the delegation from Yunnan Province Bureau for Letters and Calls. Mr Yu covered the work and functions

of the IPCC by highlighting the merits of the Hong Kong police complaints system, as well as the independence and
impartiality of IPCC'’s vetting procedures through sharing of real complaint cases.

= 20175E6H28H
@255 28 June 2017

BN+ -~ BiEESL+ - FEEL LM Miss Lisa Lau Man-man, Ms Ann Au Chor-kwan, Miss Sylvia Lee Hiu-
OEEMEERESTEAGeem . wah and MrRichard Yu (Secretary-General) met with the Society for

PR P TET RS A T A RPN ENE Communityl Organiztatlion representatives to listen to their yievvs on
the prevention of suicide attempts of the persons detained in police

custody.

20175E9A1H
1 September 2017

FRELE  WIRREENSEEHWER
BN RERFEEAERFEEBoon
TapanadulfE &£ R EBEITREXESE - 3iH
HESRFIFEIENRIRFIBER -

Mr Herman Hui Chung-shing, Mr Richard
Ho Kam-wing and Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-
General) met with Mr Boon Tapanadul, the
Ombudsman of Thalland, as well as the
delegation from the Office of the Ombudsman
of Thailand. During their visit to Hong Kong,
both parties exchanged views on monitoring
and handling of public complaints.
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.EI 20175E11813F21H
9--- 13 to 21 November 2017

AIEENERTPEZERRBBELL  SABERTERFELLNE
ZEEBMMAZL > s T HERMNEREE  BREBAFEFEER
F WERATHZE(FEABIN) BURERZE S (EZHNE
JMRKRRBRAE (BR) - ERHE - MEBRRRRATHEHHR
S WERERED ZRENMERBIRFERNE -

Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) led a delegation comprising Ms Cherry
Chan (Legal Adviser), Mr Anthony Ser (Senior Vetting Officer) and Miss Sofie
Wu (Vetting Officer) to visit four oversight bodies in Australia, namely the
Commonwealth Ombudsman, the Law Enforcement Conduct Commission
(New South Wales), the Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption Commission
(Victoria) and the Office for Public Integrity (South Australia). During the vistt,
the Secretariat delegation gained an in-depth understanding of the complaint
mechanisms of these Australian counterparts, and introduced the two-tier
police complaints system in Hong Kong to them.

YN
Open meetings

EZemEHARRRITTHRMEF  Durng the reporting period, the IPCC held four joint meetings
W et o AR EEAREME  with CAPO. Part of the mestings was open to the public and
NTEAZYeESe T NS  GF the media, so as to enhance transparency and understanding
@D E B TN T (A of the IPCC’s work. Complaint cases of public concern and key
E',f% ”XE - iF " 71; L\f roos policy issues were discussed in the open session of meetings.
BReh - ABBERRFERMEZNE  pyring the reporting period, the IPCC followed up with CAPO on
REBMELRHELMEELA® £ the use of Body Worn Video Cameras by the Police, and made
RNEENDE  ELemRFLERRERE  recommendations on extending the retention period for the
ETEHEAKYBEEMES - pt  recorded footage.

ERSFT A BRORE SR L2 -
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During the joint meeting, the Police Force provided the latest update
on complaint statistics and presented the “Project TRANSLINK”,
an initiative to facilitate non-ethnic Chinese in seeking assistance
from the Police. The IPCC also took the opportunity to follow up
with CAPO on the use of Body Wom Video Cameras by the Police.

—= || 201759H26H
@ 26 September 2017
@l EHERSHIRFRTEE - X1
DEFRBESBHEEOESF - KBRAK
W BEGEEIMORF ERTESEE
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BEE B RSR R BREH - AERE
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J®Rg

-ﬂ 20175E12H19H
e'“ 19 December 2017

BEEsL  THERKAIRFAH
& W FRLERFFSRIBFAT L - BA
ISESEILEIEIE o3 tES: NS

o 2018438200
@521 20 March 2018
EHAaERNEBESH FER2018F1AZ
2 AMKIRFSETEE - WRELEEN

EHFRERE - B EAREERLE
RRFNERMZBER -

During the meeting, the Police provided the latest complaint statistics
and shared the procedures, experiences and effectiveness of using
Body Womn Video Cameras for frontline operations. Noticing that
a number of complaints were lodged a certain period of time after
the incidents had occurred, the IPCC recommended the Police to
consider extending the retention period of footage recorded by the
Body Wom Video Cameras to facilitate evidence collection.,

During the joint meeting, the Police updated all attendees on the
latest complaint statistics, and introduced the newly established
Anti-Deception  Coordination Centre and its effectiveness in
combating and preventing deception cases.

During the joint IPCC and CAPO meeting, the Police reported the
complaint statistics between January and February 2018, and
gave a presentation on its accreditation of training programmes.
Views were exchanged on the contributions of these programmes
to preventing complaints against the Police.
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EA2018%F - EE @ R AN AT The IPCC will be completing its ninth year milestone in 2018

B ETRENERRE - 5T# since it has become an independent statutory body. To
—SEAREERE  RNARETE further enhance public understanding of the IPCC’'s work

e N and strengthen public knowledge of the two-tier police
za N = % = \ *Z\J: y =@ Eﬁi

7'5%& o Z%%HE R = Tﬂf IR complaints system, the IPCC has progressively stepped up its
ROBRFBRN  ExDERZ L communication activities through the years. While maintaining

Hee  BEHR - BE - B FMERE a strong network with its prevailing stakeholders, the IPCC

RYaEEZEEZHEN  REEEIENM has been disseminating information through a myriad of media

B4 - B RAER NG ETE D channels including print, broadcast, electronic and social

PR U SNIET ks 108 plibs o wol s oy ol o o comuy
SA 4 4 23 o s, BE B MY . J i

AR HEEBEER - REBFA institutions. To further promote public understanding of IPCC's

(7T N\ OO W e R Ly 2. 3R ‘ L
MEARPHEEGTENT R LER work and its core values, namely Independence, Impartiality
PN N J e e 251 . . . \

2B - RIEMBEHEER - and Integrity, a corporate video with online access features

was produced for use at stakeholder visits.

HHITE

Communications

T

Publications
[—1 2 o 2 g Spe=po ' 2 " A '
S S 1R A FIEAEGTE R ER,
mplaint cases'related to ¢ Complaifit cases arising from \ b
_’_!g_fj;dyty palicelofficer: criminal investigation g‘
p.2-8 W Cover story p.2-7 W Cover story
ESHE Viewpoint from IPCC p.9-12 W Special feature p.8-10
p.13-15 M#ilyhE Recent activities p.10-11 E%#R; Viewpoint from IPCC
ERWERfIMRA WA Recent activities p.12-16
IPCC Members and Observers .16
e FTHHIR (BEZES@) HBES The IPCC releases the IPCC Newsletter on a regular basis to
e TE BRAZNEHET  UED U]E)date the pgblicgn ;%he ‘Councill’s latest work and statisgigs
EEFEKOARMRSE MARTHE O] oo v fan conpian cones e cond
o) EXIE AT BIKGEHNEZR : o ;
== E’J%;‘;EF%:&M ”*L%Z%ﬁm 2%1{‘/% and evidence-based principles. The IPCC Newsletter is
Al o (EEEBA) BT UEE - BEHA distributed to stakeholders by post or email and uploaded

BGEEAFOHEN  TEHEEEGMY o the IPCC website (www.ipcc.gov.hk) for online access.
(www.ipcc.gov.hk) 848 F A& BIE - 7E5R During the reporting period, the IPCC released two issues
SHIR @D RIE201744 A ROALIRT of the IPCC Newsletter. Complaint cases related to off-duty

R (B - WLUAIIES RIS police officers and criminal investigations are featured as the
theme and in the cover stories of the April and September
2017 issues respectively.

PENTEMRFFERIEEN R EHE -
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As stipulated in the IPCCO, the IPCC must submit to the Chief Executive
areport on the IPCC’s financial standing and overall work status not later
than six months after the financial year end. The IPCC Report 2016/17
was tabled in the Legislative Council and made public on 6 December (iﬁ[: RIBFRIAZRREAY

2017.
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On top of regular publications, the IPCC also proactively explores
other platforms and channels with an aim stepping up publicity
and education. During the reporting period, the IPCC enhanced
its website with new posts on a variety of the IPCC's work
and endorsed complaint cases, information on the discussion
process with CAPO and the Queries raised. Through publishing
related articles and cases, the IPCC hoped to raise public
understanding of its work, clarify areas of doubt and reinforce
the correct understanding of lodging complaints.

During the reporting period, articles were released through the
website, including the introduction of the Observers Scheme
and the IPCC Interview. A number of complaint cases were
shared encompassing topics like the use of handcuffs and
search warrant. The articles are open for reproduction by the
media. For details, please visit the IPCC website (www.ipcc.
gov.hk).
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IPCC corporate video
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A corporate video was produced by the IPCC during the
reporting period as an effective way to introduce the IPCC’s
work to the public and stakeholders. Animation was used
to enable an in-depth but easy-to-understand introduction,
such as the roles of the IPCC, its vetting procedures and
classification of investigation results. It has enriched public
understanding of the IPCC’s role and functions. Moreover, the
video illustrated situations that the public would come across in
their daily lives. While resonating with the public, the video has
also bought on the core values of the IPCC: “Independence,
Integrity, Impartiality”.

In the first half of 2017, the IPCC began preparing for its
corporate video. After a year of groundwork, filming and post-
production, the video was completed in May 2018. It will be
shown in School Programme and other stakeholder activities
with a view to facilitating public understanding of the IPCC’s
work., Three language versions (Cantonese/English/Putonghua
voice-over) are available on the IPCC’s website (www.ipcc.
gov.hk) and YouTube channel (www.youtube.com/user/
ipccchannel).
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Media liaison
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Media briefings

201754A26H
26 April 2017

EEERLE T
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The 21st issue of the /PCC Newsletter was
released. Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman),
accompanied by Mr Daniel Mui (Deputy Secretary-
General, Operations), hosted a media briefing to
present the cover story on complaint cases related
to off-duty police officers. The Newsletter also
featured the sharing from nine newly appointed
Members, and the Council's recent stakeholder
engagement activities.

To enhance transparency, the IPCC holds press conferences
for the release of each IPCC Newsletter and the annual report to
explain to the public its work status and address media enquiries.

201747A31H
31 July 2017

AEENERETEAZREM A BIAEERE
BELTAEZEME LATRINETEARERA
EHER - AEUBRMEERD R NET &
B T1,0108KFA - EBRETRAVHELESNE
O BREMBELLEFHE AR -

Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) and Dr Robert
Chung (Director of The Public Opinion Programme,
The University of Hong Kong) announced at the media
briefing the latest results of the IPCC public opinion
survey. 1,010 adults were interviewed through

telephone on a random sampling basis. The survey
results showed improvements in public confidence,
public perception and level of satisfaction with the
IPCC as compared to last year.

ot
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© 51 11 september 2017
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EREMPTENRFEARNA BRIE MR FRRTER -
The 22nd issue of the IPCC Newsletter was released. Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), accompanied by

Mr Daniel Mui (Deputy Secretary-General, Operations), hosted a media briefing to present two complaint cases
arising from criminal investigations and statistics concerning tactical complaints.

-EI 20175128 6H
e =l 6 December 2017

(

BEaiEsEhE
IPCC Press Conference

>
[

BlXERE N ZEREEEES MY EZEIR The IPCC Report 2016/17 was submitted to the Legislative
T (BEE®2016/17 TIERE) o HiE - Council by Hon Chan Kin-por (Vice-Chairman) on behalf

WE T ST BNEE BGE R of the IPCC. On the same day, Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong

= o = . (Chairman), accompanied by Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-
= e N P i R
ER(TH)ER T EHEREDE - BE General) and Mr Daniel Mui (Deputy Secretary-General,

FRETNITERBARTET - 28% Operations), hosted a media briefing to present an overview of
BNAHFERREE WRHEENTEE  the IPCC's work and statistics for the past financial year. Several
MEHRARZR - Members also attended the event and exchanged views with

media representatives during the networking lunch that followed.
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By conducting media interviews and answering enquiries, the IPCC representatives introduce the IPCC'’s function
and work to the public. During the reporting period, Mr Larry Kwok Lam-kwong (Chairman), Ms Melissa Kaye Pang
(Member), Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General), Mr George Tam Siu-ping and Mr Liu Kam-hing (IPCC Observers)
were interviewed by various media, including Hong Kong Economic Times, Sky Post, and Metro Radio’s “Life is
so happy”. On these occasions, the operation of the IPCC and details of the Observer Scheme were explained
and elaborated. Mr Kwok also responded to questions from the media after each quarterly joint meeting between
the IPCC and CAPO.
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Corporate image

EEXEREMHITE
AR BRAE (20185F3A)

Public opinion survey conducted
by HKUPOP (March 2018)
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Respondents’ confidence in the IPCC

B EEWME  ARMREEEEEEEL?
Q : Overall speaking, are you confident in IPCC?

B A1=0 Confident
B — /% Half-half

B S2A1{=0 Not Confident
138 Don't Know

48%
BEFE: 22%

Net Confidence

2018

45% B
fFIVFE : 19%

A0 Net Confidence

A total of seven public opinion surveys have been conducted
to assess the public awareness of the IPCC’s work and the
related trend, since the IPCC became an independent statutory
body. The survey results help the IPCC assess and map out
the direction for its communication efforts in order to effectively
discharge its statutory function — “to promote public awareness
of the role of the Council” — under section 8(1)(e) of the IPCCO.

This year’s survey was conducted through telephone interviews
(landline and, for the first time, cellphone) on a random sampling
basis in March 2018. A total of 1,002 local residents aged 18
or above were interviewed. The respondents’ net confidence in
the IPCC (i.e. the percentage of positive minus that of negative)
rose from 19 percentage points last year to 22 percentage
points this year, marking increases for two consecutive years.
The satisfaction rating scored 59.6, similar to that of the
previous year, while half of the respondents felt positive about
the IPCC’s image.

As in the previous years, the latest survey results revealed
that younger and more educated respondents tended to have
less positive perception of the IPCC compared with other
age groups. With a view to examining the similarities and
discrepancies between respondents of different age groups
on their perception of the Council, the influencing factors,
as well as exploring ways to enhance their understanding of
the Council's work, the IPCC has specially arranged through
HKUPOP several focus group sessions for diverse age groups
to gather their opinions and suggestions. It was found that
younger respondents hoped the Council could step up its
publicity efforts at schools to raise youth's awareness of the
IPCC’s work. They also opined that education and publicity
efforts should deeply penetrate into the community and hence
would take time to come to fruition.

Feedback from the respondents has affirmed IPCC's direction
in promoting youth education through the School Programme
launched in November 2016 and talks at the tertiary institutions.
In the past year, the IPCC visited Shaw College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, Department of Journalism
and Communication of Hong Kong Shue Yan University and
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EZLE2018FEARERBAELRE L
HEEZLSMA © www.ipcc.gov.hkska]
REEEREREBMATEEE  www.
hkupop.hku.hk/chinese/report/ipcc2018/
index.htmi

Department of Journalism of Hong Kong Baptist University to
deliver talks at their assemblies and in major course lecture.
These three talkks, attended by more than 1,100 students
and teachers, were well received. The functions and roles of
the IPCC and some endorsed complaint cases were clearly
explained at these talks. Since the introduction of the School
Programme, the IPCC has conducted 40 visits, reaching
out to over 4,600 teachers and students from 25 secondary
and primary schools. The work of the Council was illustrated
with the aids of interactive games, case studies and group
discussions. In the future, the IPCC will continue to engage
with more schools, professional organisations and business
associations, enabling a wider range of stakeholders to have a
more direct and better understanding of the Council.

Among the four attributes of “reviewing or handling of police
complaint cases”, the respondents generally regarded
“faimess” as the most important attribute, closely followed by
‘independence”, “transparency” and ‘“efficiency”. The IPCC
has always upheld its principle to be independent, impartial and
evidence-based tally with the expectation of the public. In order
to maintain impartiality and to comply with the confidentiality
obligation, IPCC is not in a position to disclose any details
of or make any comments on a complaint case before the
conclusion of the vetting process. This may in turn affect the
public perception of the Council's transparency. Nevertheless,
the IPCC has been making its efforts in releasing endorsed
cases timely in a thematic basis through the IPCC Newsletter
and its annual report, enabling the general public to gain a
deeper insight of the Council's vetting process, classifications
of investigation results and recommendations made to improve
the service quality of the Police. By doing so, IPCC hopes the
community would better understand its efforts in scrutinising
every single case based on its merits, evidence, as well as
CAPO’s additional information responding to its Queries and
the case discussion. The ultimate goal of IPCC’s work is to
attain an investigation result which is scrupulously fair to both
the Complainants and the Complainees.

In terms of efficiency, the IPCC has been improving its internal
vetting procedures continuously by enhancing the application
of information technology. Coupled with the additional resource
provision, the average time required to review each complaint
case has been reducing progressively year by year. In 2017/18,
the time required was shortened by nearly 30% compared to
that of the previous year. The Council will continue to evaluate
various aspects of its work, especially on complaint prevention.
IPCC will make recommmendations to the Police timely whenever
it is identified improvement during the course of case vetting
with a view to further enhancing the Paolice’s service to Hong
Kong people.

The result of IPCC Public Opinion Survey 2018 is available on
the IPCC’s website at: www.ipcc.gov.hk or on the HKUPOP's
website at:  www.hkupop.hku.hk/english/report/ipcc2018/
index.html
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The Council

Eia BRI (BEEe K0 B BBEAT

Wi TR —UBRERMNZEEHATHR
REZRME - REHRNZEREWT ¢

The IPCC is an independent statutory body established under the IPCCO.
The Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and Members are all appointed by
the Chief Executive. The membership of the IPCC during this reporting
period is as follows:

Z£J% Chairman

SRIHERAD - SBS » JP
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

{£88 Appointment

2014568 1HE
Since 1 June 2014

ElZE /& Vice-Chairman

{£88 Appointment

PREEFZES » GBS » JP
Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP

BERFEREEESEE
Serious Complaints Committee Chairman

2013%F 1818
Since 1 January 2013

REIRZES - SBS - JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

2015F 1818
Since 1 January 2015

HMESRFES - BBS
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

2015%F 1818
Since 1 January 2015

Z S Member

HRERERKER
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC

{£88 Appointment

20125F10R18#
Since 1 October 2012

FEEBEEEERE

Legal Committee Chairman

2|z Z+ BBS ' MH : JP
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

20141818
Since 1 January 2014

EERERAEEEEER
Publicity and Survey Committee Chairman

FFIRER{EAD - SBS MH » JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

2015F 18 1H#E
Since 1 January 2015

EBEREFHAEZEEER

Operations Advisory Committee Chairman

258 T#26M - BBS » JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

EREZEEERE
Management Committee Chairman

2015%F 1818
Since 1 January 2015

MEIZ%4E - BBS » JP
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

PREZTREESE - BBS » JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP

At EEHIR - Ti26M
Ir Prof Vincent HO

FEBRE &R AL - BBS
Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC

100 musmesm2gREas | 201718 THRS

20125 10R18#
Since 1 October 2012

2013%F 1818
Since 1 January 2013

2013F1A1H#E
Since 1 January 2013

2013%F 1818
Since 1 January 2013



AN

Z&8 Member

HBYEZEE  MH: JP
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP

#RER#EIE T - BBS * MH » OStJ © JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP

SRR EETAD
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

EEEER
Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

ELBERKEM
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

PRERECEETAD
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing

Bkt
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

EREEHZt
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

RIKBRE
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

EEEEIRAEM
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

T RAERD
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

ZR{-E4 - BBS MH » JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

SEB{ERAT 0 MH > JP
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP

RigELZ+
Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI

BEREHR
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

mEBERE - JP
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

{£8] Appointment

20141818
Since 1 January 2014

2015F 18168
Since 1 January 2015

2015F 1816
Since 1 January 2015

201651818
Since 1 January 2016

2016FE 1818
Since 1 January 2016

201668 1HE
Since 1 June 2016

20166 1H#E
Since 1 June 2016

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

201751818
Since 1 January 2017

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

201751818
Since 1 January 2017

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

201751818
Since 1 January 2017

2017 1R 1H#E
Since 1 January 2017

201751818
Since 1 January 2017

2017 1R 1H#E
Since 1 January 2017
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. A.L
%% E'Ez' = H% ru\Eﬁ‘i
IPCC Members’ attendance at in-house meetings
BFHA: 201794 A £20184% 38 Period: April 2017 to March 2018

FERegERTANFESE  BE2BEEZETwmEZe® ThelPCC holds in-house mestings every quarter, for the full Council
E’]WE‘LBI{/E MEZE . fedEERRiges . 1o dscuss intemal matters.  Special in-house meeting would be
S HRE B @ EINE R T RS RIS E S o held when necessary. During this reporting period, two additional

’ special in-house meetings were held.

2017 2018
6868 | 68208 | 9A5H ‘12)5155 18298 | 3A6H 4%

6Jun | 20Jun | 5Sep 5Dec 29Jan | 6 Mar Total

Z£JE Chairman

SRIKEERD - SBS » JP
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

EIZERE Vice-Chairman

L o o o L L 6/6

PREEEZRE » GBS » JP 5/6
Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP

REIEHES - SBS » JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

H{E825E8 » BBS

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS ® O ¢ ¢ ® ¢ i

Z£ 8 Member

BEHBERKEED
Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC

2w Z+ > BBS ' MH » JP
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

SFoRER{EAD - SBS MH » JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

BE)AF TF2E0 - BBS » JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

MBIZE5%E - BBS 0 JP
Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

PRIEZREEAE » BBS © JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP

AR ~ Ti2RM
Ir Prof Vincent HO

B RR{S & R KA > BBS
Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC

100 BusmErERRREas | 201718 THES



2017 2018
6A6H |68208 | 9A58 |12A58 1H29H | 3A6H  #E
6Jun | 20Jun | 5Sep 5Dec 29Jan | 6 Mar Total

Z£ S Member

BEYEZE ' MH: JP
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP O @) o O () ® 36

#4558 18+ - BBS * MH » OStJ » JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP ¢ & & o o6 o i

SRR EETED

Mr Richard HO Kam-wing ® O o o o o s
#gE J%Tigﬂi
Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung ® o O [ ® O s
LS EIRKEED
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC O O ® O ® ® 3/6

PRERECETTAD
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing ® e e e O O 4s
Ehkiz Lt

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen ® o o O o L 5/6

EBEEZ L
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan ® e o [ ® O 66

RKBEE
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu e e O e e O 46

ERRERAER

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC O O e O e O 26

Z5 B EE R 1EED
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah o e o [ ® O 66

ZR{ZEB4% ' BBS > MH » JP Y O 0O () () o

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP 4/6

T ER{EEEN - MH » JP

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP e O o e o o 56

RiFEL L

Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI o O O ® O O 2/6

BEREHR
o o ([ o o o
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang o/6

BEBLE P

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP ® e o ° O @ 56

4 BIRFEEH Special in-house meeting @ 477 Attended O k% Did not attend
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SRR EERME SR Bk
IPCC Members’ attendance at joint IPCC/CAPO meetings

BFER: 20174 E20185F3A  Period: April 2017 to March 2018

2017 2018
68208 | 9826H ‘12)51195 3H820H

20 Jun 26 Sep 19 Dec 20 Mar

£ Chairman

SPIHERAED - SBS » JP
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

EIZERE Vice-Chairman

| | @) L 3/4

fREEK=E » GBS » JP

Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP ® ® ® ® 4/4
REIEZHS - SBS» JP

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP ® ® o ° 4/4
Hi{E#3E8 © BBS o o o . »

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

aﬂii%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁg-yee, SC O O O O 0/4
l\gx:Jisistiiil_/;uBair;-maHn: ;gs, MH, JP ® ® ® ® 44
Jﬁfﬁgﬂ; ﬁﬁ?gh,u?;s,h\ij:g, SBS, MH, JP O o o ® 34
r éijarlﬁvgiN gﬁi?p’i nJgI?BBS, JP ® ® ® [ 414
ﬁrfnﬁfeint ’TigSK;vii-lau, BBS, JP L O O ° 2/4
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfél—fﬁ };i;fkeung, BBS, JP ® ® ® [ 414
fraj fﬁﬁ r%e‘niEH%Eﬂi O ® o ] 3/4
B BRfS EIR A AT - BBS 5 o o o »

Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC

104 BussErERRRsas | 201718 THES



2017 2018
6H208 | 9A26H ‘12)51195 3A20H FLL
20 Jun 26 Sep 19 Dec 20 Mar Total

Z &8 Member

HEYERE MH: JP

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP o O O [ 2/4
¥354E@ L > BBS » MH » OStJ > JP

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP ® ® ® ® 4/4
Griilyghaa:z EI-TO Kam-wing ® O o L 3/4
h:rlusjffgcmHm Chi-yung ® O O [ 2/4
M%i?%nfoﬁimMAURELLET, sc O O O O 0/4
ﬁfiTZnTSIEEHAN Kam-wing ® O ] ® 3/4
ﬁ:ﬁfﬁf KWONG Wing-tsuen - ® ® ® 44
;E;I'X:Zirfriﬁ Chor-kwan ® o ® L 4/4
?/Ii:j;f)f% CEHU Wing-yiu 1 ® ® ® 4/4
e s ©c e e o
ﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬂi& Hiu-wah ® ® [ [ 414
igg;i%ié I?(ESyar,:/I :B,S\,J::/IH, JP ® O ® [ 3/4
:/I: r\jlﬂeiiﬂ; Kgﬂy'l PAJISG, MH, JP O ® O ® 2/4
;A?iihafr:: Shivan SUJANANI o O O ® 2/4
ii ﬁfrz’uh; WONG Chi-sang 1 ® ° ® 4/4
BmEBRE - JP ° 5 5 o »

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

@ HFE Attended O & Did not attend
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Committees
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Organisational structure

Members of the IPCC are divided into four groups to examine the
investigation reports submitted by CAPO. The IPCC has also set up
five Committees to help perform its functions more efficiently.

The terms of reference and members of the five Committees are as
follows:

Serious Complaints Committee

106 ®uz

REEE
(a) FTERR BARTESEERER
MBREER

(b) FHFTAIHIE AR B E IR I (E R AV 4 Al
2R

() MEREFESFINANERER X
AR - B BB E IR AR

(d) BEREERFERNAE > 1A
EFR R

(6) RHEBRRAME L RERBER
ez

Bl
B

EZ=BRBERIASEIER - ¢

o

REFRERFESS | 201718 THBS

Terms of reference

(a) To determine the criteria of serious cases that should come
under the monitoring of the Committee;

(o) To examine and determine special procedures for
monitoring serious complaints;

(c) Toexamine the need to seek outside professional advice or
service to facilitate the scrutiny of complaint cases;

(d) To examine the findings of serious complaint cases
after investigation has been completed, and put forward
recommendations to the Chairman;

(e) To put forward any issues in relation to the monitoring of
serious complaint cases for the IPCC'’s deliberation, as the
Committee deems appropriate.



54|

£

PRIZKZRE - GBS JP

£8

REWEES  SBS 0 JP
HE$REE - BBS
FEIZELLE - BBS 0 JP
AR ERKEM
AR - TI2AM
BEBR{S &R A #ERT - BBS

2 Z+ > BBS > MH ' JP

HEVEZRE ' MH @ JP

#REEdEiE+ » BBS ' MH » OStJ » JP
SrRER{EER - SBS » MH ¢ JP

PREFEREETAD
X
FEARRED

i

SV
B
-

F
B &

2=

&
W

Bt

{Z%4+ ' BBS ' MH ' JP

Membership

Chairman

Hon CHAN Kin-por, GBS, JP

Members

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC

Ir Prof Vincent HO

Mr Arthur LUK Yee-shun, BBS, SC

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
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Management Committee
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(b) FEHNHLAE -
o FFREEMNEIND)
o SAREZ T/ SR SIR S A T AR
EBEMZMT - FREKIHER
e HEEEK SR ENEBITH
£EH
o (It BEBESE LR N L HE
FHEBEBENRTFAY B8
EEEAERAECEZESEEAR
BHISOEE

(c) REZEEREBENTMAITHRME
BEH #HELTeEE -

154 =

E
BE)A Y T7i260 - BBS ¢ JP

z£8

S EERN - SBS © JP

#HMESREES - BBS

MEIZE%ELE - BBS 0 JP

I EERER - Ti2Am

#p$34EH+  BBS* MH » OStJ » JP
EF =il

BBoK RSt

TR K2R

WEREREN > MH > JP

108 musmesm2gREas | 201718 THRS

Terms of reference

(a) To oversee major areas of work of the Secretariat;

(b) To consider and approve:
e Any changes to the annual budget;

e The appointment, interdiction from duty, and termination
of employment of employees at or below Senior Vetting
Officer/Senior Manager ranks;

e Key administrative matters that affect the service of the
IPCC;

e Proposed new contracts with estimated value at or
above HK$50,000 or covering a new area of activity,
with the exception of those contracts or activities that
come under the purview of the Publicity and Survey
Committee;

(c) To put forward any administrative or management issues
for the IPCC's deliberation as the Committee deems
appropriate.

Membership

Chairman

Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Members

Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS

Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP

Ir Prof Vincent HO

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP



EFERERAEES

Publicity and Survey Committee

Rk HEEEE
(a) BRAUEAELEGHRINEDRIRRH
BEZeniEiG

(b)

ERMILECRARENEE LBERE
B B

* SEYmHABTMKRET - FIANFHR - &
B BRI NEMEEmR
* EREFEEE

o BREMZ A A BN ER GRS

ERMLERRERARENERLAET
1 - A RPGEMEBR AR BBIERE A
THE:

ES5R (o) M(c)EMTEGHEIMERME X ¢

ipatEliRME R - 1

BT B

IRE Bie

FREEET
LTEEE
ZEE3

,T/\

REE Y EE EE R I
g%

B
S

4 Hb
IE}EE

on

=

£

Bzt

» BBS * MH @ JP

£8

HEZERE
BREZIREEAE -

BBS ' JP
BBS ' JP

At R - TR2E0

HEYERS -
ERipiEE L

MH » JP
BBS : MH : OStJ @ JP

(£20184E15)

BRERER

L HE

BREBL L (B2017F7 AE)
RIKBEE
BEBLLE P

Terms of reference

(@) To consider measures that could enhance the image and
public understanding of the IPCC;

(o) To consider and approve publicity-related activities which
have been budgeted for, including:

e Content and design of publicity materials, such as
annual reports, website, videos, publications and other
promotional materials;

e | aunching of publicity activities;

e Selection and commissioning of contractors to assist in
such projects;

(c) To consider and approve the launching of surveys
that have been budgeted for, and the selection and
commissioning of contractors to assist in such projects;

(d) To monitor the progress and quality of the projects in (o)
and (c);

(e) To consider and advise on an annual publicity plan for the
IPCC’s consideration;

()  To put forward any publicity-related issues for the IPCC's
deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Membership

Chairman

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

Members

Mr Clement TAO Kwok-lau, BBS, JP
Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP
Ir Prof Vincent HO

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
(Till Jan 2018)

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan (Since Jul 2017)
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
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Operations Advisory Committee
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110 muz

Rk HESEE

(@)

(©)

MREER R EZBERRF - ANE
1B 2R Bl Bo 2k 22 A i 5 AR R B
& URBREEBROBESEAM
EEN-REAENERFRAWE R
hhuﬁ NREBEBR T ELE
CHEEEEE

HERERR AL AR TIFEES
& ANIRRETEKREEETFEE
EEHLF

RWERER  BEIMER - AR
BMEBRFEFRERER  YHEE
EREFERELEZ  ABHR
BORFREETIERZ(REREE
EEREE R ENSERE) -
NE—FRAEESEREZREFH
BMERR AR B MERWE R
ARHEESEREZTM BT
it ~ @< WREF - ERFIIRF
B2 32 B BE R RN S48 o TR XA 7K

A WEEEBER T EhEE - H]E
EEERE
ME RS & EEE TR

RetEAMERRHER  YHEEE
BRTELER  HEEEEE -

REFRERFESS | 201718 THBS

Terms of reference

(@)

To advise the Secretariat on general issues and matters
of significant importance arising from the scrutiny and
examination of Reportable Complaints (RC), Notifiable
Complaints (NC) categorisation and cases resolved by
Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM) as well
as monitoring actions on post endorsement issues, and,
where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for
the IPCC’s consideration;

To co-ordinate Working Level Meetings (WLM) with CAPO
and nominate IPCC Members to chair the WLM;

Upon review, observations or report of the Secretariat, to
advise on the existing police complaint process and, where
appropriate and necessary, make recommendations to
streamline the existing workflows for complaint handling,
from the intake to disposal of complaints, with a view
to further improving the efficiency and effectiveness of
the IPCC case examination process; and to this end it
will be consulted by the Secretariat on the review of the
IPCC Case Examination Manual, police manuals, orders,
standing procedures, instructions or guidelines which are
related to complaints or complaints handling; and, where it
deems appropriate, make recommendations for the IPCC’s
consideration;

To advise the Secretariat on research projects and studies
to be undertaken by the Secretariat in relation to the
work of IPCC, and, where it deems appropriate, make
recommendations for the IPCC’s consideration.
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Legal Committee
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g
f@%%éﬁﬁw%%@iw%ﬁﬁg
BRATEERERELRER -

(a) FIRFERMELHDERERE

SIRO) REEERERA

EREBHERE
IR o

SR 2RWER BT L

£
MEEERAEE

£8

FFREXERR > SBS MH » JP
FLIEE R AERM

B G RAER

IR KR

S ER{EEA - MH > JP

REFRERFESS | 201718 THBS

Terms of reference

Legal Committee is to comment and express views on the
following as may be required by the Council or Secretariat from
time to time.

(a)

Legal issues arising from the examination of complaint
cases;

(o) Interpretation of the IPCCO and I's internal rules and
regulations;

(c) Legal research arising from or incidental to the Council's
work;

(d) Legalissues arising from the operation and/or administration
of the Council; and

(e) Any other legal issues related or incidental to the Council's

work.

Legal Committee may require the Secretariat to assist in carrying
out the above.

Membership

Chairman

Mr John YAN Mang-yee, SC

Members

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, MH, JP



HES

Observers

EEREHE T RLBRBEREEAE4AE Under the Observers Scheme, the Secretary for Security may

ALTHE

AR A BEER S,
ETefiRg

B e ey  appoint persons deemed fit as IPCC Observers, to assist the

m = =0

s ge i e g H A A JEE BIT R T o B Council in observing the manner in which CAPO handles and

EHAREESERENRENT

investigates Reportable Complaints.  The following is a list of
Observers in the current reporting period:

HmERE Name of Observers

(
© ® N o o » W N

—

N N N N N N N N 2 @A a 4o 4 a o O o« o«
N~ o o0 A WO N O ©W 0O N OO o0 WO NN~ O

EBESELt Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

BT ST Mr BOU Shing-ip

EXRMESRE > BBS MH - JP Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP
FR&EZ L » MH Ms CHAN Hang, MH

PREEZ L Ms Jenny CHAN Heung-lin

PRIFRE & Mr Patrick CHAN Ka-chun
PRERERE Mr Calvin CHAN Ka-wai

PREFZEE A& Mr CHAN Ming-wah

PREETR A& Mr Haydn CHAN Mou-keung
PRERE & Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok
PREBEEE = Dr CHAN Yuk-kit

BN e Mr Calvin CHAU

BRI RE Mr Gordon CHIN Shing-hoi
BETIEL Dr Gary CHENG Faat-ting
BRARMIELE - MH Mr Mathew CHENG Muk-lam, MH
EAIE 4 - MH Mr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung, MH
ERRE A - MH Mr Edwin CHENG Shing-lung, MH
RIEESLE Mr Charles CHEUNG Cheuk-yiu
REELRE Mr Human CHEUNG

REIZ LA Mr CHEUNG Kwok-wai

RIEB A 0 MH Mr Thomas CHEUNG Tsun-yung, MH
RIREERE Mr CHEUNG Yam-lung

RAKEEL Dr CHEUNG Yee-lai

ARt Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may

HS Bh4E Mr Anthony CHIU Ling-cheong
BB L L Mr Wilkie CHOI Wing-kee
HARIZE%4E - BBS 0 JP Mr CHONG Chong-yip, BBS, JP
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Hz=sgE Name of Observers

28 sREEZ L MH Ms Joanne CHONG Sze-pui, MH
® 29 ZEMELE > MH Mr Charles CHOW Chan-lum, MH
® 30 FREEL > MH Dr CHOW Kam-wai, MH

31 JAME%4E > BBS  MH Mr Alan CHOW Yiu-ming, BBS, MH

32 EHREE Mr Samson CHU Chi-ming

33 @Rt Ms CHUNG Ching-may
® 34 @EHELL Ms CHUNG Yin-ting

35 SEElftELE Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit

36 AX#HEE Mr James Mathew FONG

37 FH¥%&EBBS: JP Mr FONG Ping, BBS, JP
® 38 FEEEL Dr Shirley FU

39 BEREEE Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang

40 fUEEREL Dr HO Wai-kuen
® 41 fFMkLE Mr James HO Tsz-kong

42 [ARERLE Mr Alec HO Yat-wan
® 43 @izt Ms HO Yuen-han
@ 44 FEBKE Mr Simon HUI Hing-tak

45 FEM%E - BBS© MH Mr HUI Ka-hoo, BBS, MH
® 46 FN£ERE Mr HUI Man-kit

47  ERWHEEE MH Ms IP Tin-yau, MH
® 48 HEELZL Ms KAM Heung-wah

49  EEEILE Mr Lawrence KEUNG Chi-kong
® 50 SHHELHE Mr Edward KO Ming-tung

51 [EEBA{=fEt  MH Dr Charles KOO Ming-yan, MH
© 52 ERERMBSLAE Mr KWOK Kam-hung

53 EEASLE  MH: JP Mr David LAl Tat-sang, MH, JP

54 MIFBEEE  BBS MH: JP Mr Billy LAM Chek-yau, BBS, MH, JP

55 MFEiEE Mr LAM Chi-ki

56 MEEEELE  BBS MH: JP Dr Lawrence LAM Chi-kit, BBS, MH, JP

57 MIRF KL Mr LAM Chun-sing

58  MRELEKSEE > MH Mr LAM Faat-kang, MH

59 MUKIBSELE Mr LAM Ho-yeung

60 MBEFIEE Mr Laurie LAM Hoy-lee
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® 61
62
63
64
65
66
67

® 68
69
70
71
72

@ /3

@ 74
75

® 76
77
78
79
80
81
82

® 83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90

@ 91
92
93

MERLEE  MH Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH
MAKEEL - SBS * BBS » JP Dr Lam Tai-fai, SBS, BBS, JP
BIWELSE - MH > JP Mr LAU Hing-wah, MH, JP
BXR®B%ELE - MH > JP Mr LAU Ka-keung, MH, JP
BZELEE Mr LAU Kar-wah

BINEREE Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
BlERKE Mr Billy LAU Wai-kwong

BIER KL Mr Ellis LAU Ying-tung
BRBLZL Ms LAW Yee-ki

TRELL Ms Eva LEE

ZEBLL Ms LEE Fu-fan

THEEE Mr LEE Sai-kee

Z=7tfE+L » BBS Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
THEHrT Ms Vivian LEE Ying-shih
ZEERE Mr Patrick LEE Wai-cheong
ZHERLZLT MH - JP Mrs Tennessy LEE HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
RNERE Mr LEUNG Man-kwong
PEESLE S JP (£2017F118)  MrLEUNG Sau-chi, JP (Till Nov 2017)
Py e gu Ms LEUNG Suk-chong
THBELE Mr Joseph LI Chiu-wah
ERBAEEE - MH Dr LIU Kai-ming, MH

BEERE L Mr LIU Kam-hing

BRRESE Mr LO Fat-keung

ERELE Mr Vincent LO Kai-fu

EIRELLE - MH > JP Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
EHABEL Dr LO Pui-yin

Ef&ZiE Mr LO Tze-on

BICEBEE P Mr LO Yan-lai, JP

BEg Lt - MH - JP Ms LU Hai, MH, JP

BEREE Mr LUI Chi-ho

PEE) T Mr LUK King-kwong
BESELL Mrs Virginia MA LO Kam-wah
BE L+ Ms Mabel MAK Lok-sheung
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94 HEYLHE Mr Vincent MAK Wai-kwong
95 EfpiELLE - MH - JP Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH,JP
© 96 EEfE4kEn Rev MOK Yun-fai
® 97 {mELEE Mr Aaron NG Hoi-shan
98 REBEKLt:JP Ms NG Ling-ling, JP
® 99 SmmsgA Mr Andy NG Wang-tsang
100 RkEZEE ' JP Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, JP
101 EDmEE Mr NGAN Siu-lun
102 BEELE Mr PUN Kwok-wah
103 EEF %4 BBS JP Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
104 #WEES%EE  BBS ' MH: JP Mr SIU Chor-kee, BBS, MH, JP
105 #HEBELL Ms Herdy SO Wai-yin
® 106 FEZRERSE » MH Mr Kyran SZE, MH
® 107 ELEf#ELZL  JP Ms Angelique TAM Chi-wah, JP
® 108 HELRLE Mr TANG Chi-wang
® 109 EIKMEE Mr George TAM Siu-ping
® 110 THeELLE Mr TING Kin-wa
111 EFELZ+ Ms TONG Tze-yan
112 E=ZEL&t Ms TSANG Ka-lai
® 113 B EEE Mr TSANG Man-biu
114 B @EELE Mr TSANG Man-hing
115 BRERLE Mr Newman TSANG Yiu-man
116 #HAEEEL Dr Patrick TSE Kwing-chuen
117 1RiE8REE4E Dr Michael TSUI Fuk-sun
118 EERTE Mr Wesley WAN Wai-hei
® 119 FEEB{EL  MH Dr Albert WONG, MH
120 =EREL - JP Dr WONG Chung-leung, JP
® 121 TEHRELZL Ms Jacqueline WONG
0 122 IRFEE Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung
@ 123 =EEH«z+ Ms Macy WONG Mei-sze
124 J|ZRE%E © MH Mr WONG Wang-to, MH
125 FHREEE%4E - MH Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH
® 126 {AFFELE 0 JP Mr WU Chor-nam, JP
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127
128
129
® 130
131
@ 132
133
134
® 135
136
@® 137
138

HHREE L

RERELE
EEEEL
AR ITE

2B -

BERBL

HIRBLAE
BifRmLLE -

phE R+
REF KL
REERE

JP Dr Kitty WU Kit-ying, JP
Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung
Dr Michael YAM Chi-ho
Mr YAN Mou-keung

MH Rev David YEUNG Hok-ming, MH
Dr YEUNG Wai-hong
BBS ' JP Mr YEUNG Yiu-chung, BBS, JP
BBS ' MH - JP Mr Stephen YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP

Ms Christina YIU Po-nga
Mr Alan YOUNG Tim-tsan
Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
Mr YUEN Tat-tong

® 2017F4F1BHED
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2017)

® 2017F1MB1BHES
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2017)

2017F4H18EK
Retired Observers (1 Apr 2017)

® 2017F11B1HENK
Retired Observers (1 Nov 2017)
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Organisational structure

Br@sipn s
IPCC Secretariat
BExeh —[EA2BOWMERETIE WEERWEREE > 2017/18FHFHILE4LKE - MEENTERE

m s =8
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m
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IPCC Secretariat Structure (as at 31 March 2018)
Secretary-General

AR De u:;?ecrfta(ﬁigc)aneral
Legal Adviser - (operatioryns)

BiEHER (1) BNEHER (2)

Assistant Assistant

Secretary-General (1) Secretary-General (2)

el THER/N

Research Team 7 Vetting Teams
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The IPCC is supported by a full-time Secretariat, headed by Secretary-General, with a total of 54 establishments in

2017/18. The major function of the Secretariat is to assist Council Members in examining complaint investigation
reports and promoting the work of the IPCC.

The organisational chart of the IPCC Secretariat, as at 31 March 2018, is as below:

FANREE

Personal Secretary

BRER (BE)
Deputy Secretary-General

(Management)

AT B £ SR AR TS

Finance &

Corporate Services Team

ExiEE

Vetting
Team
Support
Unit

LERBR
fHizs
sTEIH

Corporate

Services &

Observers

Scheme
Unit

MR
— RS
Finance
& General
Unit

Team

ANERRENER .

Y/
Human Resources & AR
Information Management

Public Relations Team

AN&iRA

Human
Resources
Unit

GRS

Information
Technology
Unit
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Independent auditor’s report to Independent Police Complaints Council

(BR CBUEREFRERFZEGED) KAL)
(Established under the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance)

CPA

BR

AAZEEN (A T T8 [ ) BEEIIHE
REE127 2147 B MBI B BB H EIRIR
ESEUATHEBE B W B®RE
I EBRREEN - \F=A=1+—
HOB SR RREEEZE EFENEME
WHK  REEHRNBFSRER - UK
FIEmEME  RREESHBCREE -

BMRER  ZEVBRROBEFLG
B AgEmE (BBRBHREER) BE
mAEBsRRTEER -_F—/\F=A=
T—BHP BB EZ A IEFERE
BRALBESRE -

BRZEMH

BRMDREFBGAMASRME (FE
FATER)) EITER - RAIEXFEAT
AENETDEARS [ZHEET
BRRAZENEE] MoPIEE—FH
o REBEFBSFMAGHRAN (FXEE
FHEDBIESTRA)) (AT (<RI ) &
MBYRNES  YEETTRFOHEMLE
KBREAML - RIFEE - RAIFMTESHE
HRERE AR A AKMNETER
PR -

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Independent
Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) set out on pages
127 to 147, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in reserves and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2018, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report.  We are independent of the Council in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council and those charged
with governance for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as
the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible
for assessing the Council's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Council
either intends to liquidate the Council or to ceases operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Council's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
29 of Schedule 1 of the Independent Police Complaints Council
Ordinance (Cap.604), and for no other purposes. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain  professional  skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal contral.
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e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Council's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council
o cease to continue as a going concemn.

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

/an\aé Uvﬂ? Cfk MZ/

PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED
Certified Public Accountant

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising), MSCA

Certified Public Accountant (Practising), Hong Kong
Practising Certificate Number: P05468

271 August 2018
Hong Kong
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Statement of comprehensive income — for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
$ $
KA Income
BB Government grants 6 74,479,489 66,056,879
EbUZ A Other income 7 65,689 6,967
74,545178 66,063,846
X Expenditure
B T A Staff costs 44,087,972 38,573,851
—MMATERE F General and administrative expenses 20,399,718 16,909,310
A&k 8 F4 Honorarium to Council members 18 851,880 808,450
65,339,570 56,291,611
XEERGREMB2EKEEEE
Surplus and other comprehensive income for the year 8 9,205,608 9,772,235
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Statement of financial position — at 31 March 2018

P aE 2018 2017
Note $ $
JERENEE Non-current assets
[EE & E Fixed assets 10 8,736,992 4,325,600
FEZE Current assets
& KA 5KIE Deposits and prepayments 4,308,411 3,586,060
U FI & Interest receivable 5,893 -
R & MIBEHEY Cash and cash equivalents 11 61,764,933 56,456,194
66,079,237 60,042,254
TENE & Current liabilities
IEIEBR T B) Deferred government grants 12 2,156,666 1,746,072
HbfE BN EETE A Other payables and accruals 13 2,911,722 2,715,113
5,068,388 4,461,185
FENEEE{E Net current assets 61,010,849 55,581,069
BEA{EERE & & Total assets less current liabilities 69,747,841 59,906,669
FER B E1& Non-current liabilities
IEFE BT B) Deferred government grants 12 1,381,528 1,598,611
B T #4)mBN < B Provision for staff gratuities 14 4,939,214 4,086,567
6,320,742 5,685,178
B EF{H Net assets 63,427,099 54,221,491
{18 Reserves
KT A% Accumulated surplus 15 63,427,099 54,221,491

RERZE-NFNRBZ+— B ATEEAMETBRE
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 21 August 2018.

REH > QC>SC JP

FE

Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP
Chairman

Kt
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Statement of changes in reserves — for the year ended 31 March 2018

RitEes

Accumulated surplus

$

RZFT—7FEMA—B 2%} Balance at 1 April 2016 44,449,256
FARBREEENKEE Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 9,772,235
R=T—+tFMA—B 2482 Balance at 1 April 2017 54,221,491
FARBREEENKEE Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 9,205,608
RZ-FT—/\{£MA—B 2%} Balance at 1 April 2018 63,427,099
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RERBR —BE_FT—/N\F=A=+—HLEE
Statement of cash flows — for the year ended 31 March 2018

P = 2018 2017
Note $ $
%38 ;5% Operating activities
FARMBRIEM I
Surplus and other comprehensive income for the year 9,205,608 9,772,235
B TS EEL AT Adjustments for:
- #TE Depreciation 3,254,523 2,568,640
- FBULA Interest income (63,798) (3,971)
LEEEEPRIc2ERR
Operating surplus before working capital changes 12,396,333 12,336,904
Ze RIBFFRIE ZIGM
Increase in deposits and prepayments (722,351) (1,137,549)
EFETR 60 B 2 38 00/ ORi4>)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred government grants 193,511 (1,841,879)
H A 5RIE M BT B R 2 38 00/ ORLA>)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals 196,609 (567,798)
B T AmBN e B 2 1800/ ORld)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for staff gratuities 852,647 (214,615)
LEEBEANBESRAA
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,916,749 8,575,063
2 & &%) Investing activities
& A [E £ & & Purchase of fixed assets (7,665,915) (1,001,170)
B Y FI B Interest received 57,905 3,971
B EE) 2 IRE M HFEE Net cash used in investing activities (7,608,010) (997,199)
ReR[EFEY 2 EINFH
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,308,739 7,577,864
FMZBRERFEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 56,456,194 48,878,330
FRZBAERIEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 61,764,933 56,456,194
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Notes to the financial statements — 31 March 2018

1. Btk

BYERENRERHFZES(1XE])
ERIE (BUERETRERFRESR
) BALR—EDEAE - RIE OB ER
ETRERFEZEGHI) (F604F)
(TAREEE))  RNEEOEEHBED
AR EREATER ERNEREA
PE IR AR AR IR A A E TE - A5t
NG (A PR B Y R B iR SR B R AV 2
EMEETFERESRRERIITEREE
FRALAMERLER - AgTFEM
RRARAERFERMELRGES
HEREBESABIELNTEIETE
2 YHEBTHREHER -

RRAEW I FEE - AEBETE
AISNERI LM EARE - Bk ARgMmE
RUBHLENEE B REATEFRX
T MR EEE R BITAER
BEAEMBEE

AEMET TR RAEBNER - £
ERBUAKEE T —EMRFE - A
FE R A EEEFIB RIS ©

2. FEEM TR EEA

RENMBHREDRETESAMAE
BRI BERNE Y HmEER -
BREMABEERNERBNE LY GRS E
Al ERSFENMNEENEELARE
AFRAGER - TR EFHRCERNME
30

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Independent Police Complaints Council (the “Council’) is
a body corporate established under the Independent Police
Complaints Council Ordinance. Under the Independent Police
Complaints Council Ordinance (Cap. 604) (the “Ordinance”), the
Council assumes its statutory role as the authority for observing,
monitoring and reviewing the handling and investigation of
reportable complaints, and making recommendations to the
Commissioner of Police or the Chief Executive or both of them in
respect of the handling or investigation of reportable complaints
as specified in the Ordinance. The Council also monitors actions
taken or to be taken in respect of any member of the police force
by the Commissioner in connection with reportable complaints,
and to advise them of its opinion on such actions.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and
capital management objectives are to maintain a balance between
annual income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate
as a going concem and perform its statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed by government subventions. Any
operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial
year to meet future expenditure required for the operations of the
Council.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Councils financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A
summary of significant accounting policies is set out in note 3.
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3.

(@)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial
statements is at historical cost.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, as follows:-

e | easehold improvements 3 years
¢ Office equipment 5 years
e Computer equipment 3 years
e Furniture and fixtures 3 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

A Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment or series of payments the right
to use an asset for an agreed period of time. Determining
whether an arrangementis, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of
whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset.
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(©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
payments made on acquiring land held under an operating
lease are recognised in the statement of financial position as
lease premium for land.

Contingent rents are charged as an expense in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Deposits and prepayments

Deposits and prepayments are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Other payables

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and,
after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-
term payables with no stated interest rate and the effect
of discounting being immaterial, that are measured at their
original invoice amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the income transaction will
flow to the Council and the income and the costs, if any, in
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably, income
is recognised as follows:

()  Govermment grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Council will comply with all attached
conditions.

Govermmment grants relating to the purchase of fixed
assets are included in deferred income and are credited
to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
() Employee leave entitements

Employee entitements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs

The Council has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the MPF Scheme) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance for non-civil service
contract staff. The Council contributes 5% of the relevant
income of staff members under the MPF Scheme and
subject to ceiling of $1,500 per month. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Councill, in
funds under the control of trustee.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are charged as an
expense as they fall due.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwil
At the end of reporting period, the Council reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Whenitis not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Council estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
alocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Related parties

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Council if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Council;
(i) has significant influence over the Council; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Council.

b) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Council or an entity
related to the Council;

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(i) A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Council has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA that are first effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017, including:-

BRERERFTR(ETA)  REREK : KETE

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

B ERERF12R(ERIA) AR - ERABRBBRNELHAEE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

RAFEEAZSE SIS HREERY
AEMPBERBERRLEEENY
2,

130 BussErERRREag | 201718 THES

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs has no material

effects on the Council’s financial performance and positions.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The Council's management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Council's accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The
assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. While the management reviews their
judgements, estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual
results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial
risk management are set out in note 17. There are no other key
sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset
and liabilities within the next financial year.

6. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants represent the funds granted by the
Government for the Council's services which is determined with
regard to the needs of the Council as presented in its annual
budget and proposed projects.

7. OTHER INCOME

2018 2017
$ $

¥ B) Government grants
EHAb YA Other income

63,798 3,971
1,891 2,996
65,689 6,967
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8. EFRZRBREZHEINE 8. SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

FARBLEEAWEEFTA Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year is arrived at
after charging:

2018 2017
$ $
(a) BIA Staff costs

— SR Il A FE S F Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 945,607 851,588
—¥¢ TEREAMERF Salaries, wages and other benefits 43,142,365 37,722,263
44,087,972 38,573,851

(b) —M& K17 E A General and administrative expenses
% EETE 4 Auditor’s remuneration 39,500 38,000
YERLERENEEE A Rent, rates and management fee 12,141,264 9,188,656
NRREE E#E A Public and educational affairs expenses 1,051,629 627,205
BB 5138|E A Observers’ scheme expenses 499,272 1,116,218
1Rk E A Insurance 56,200 48,316
#1EHRE Repair and maintenance 1,509,971 1,768,042
YEINETS SRR B B Overseas duty visit 251,291 -
NARMEE A Utiities 332,531 318,539
TE Depreciation 3,254,523 2,568,640
HZRKE R Professional services - 350,000
H v Miscellaneous 1,263,537 885,694
20,399,718 16,909,310

9. BilE 9. TAXATION

BiE (FRISIEN) FE8TIEMBRE A No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
FEIRGBERTS - & A2 8B 1E AN B IS IR financial statements as the Council is exempted from profits tax

ARRZaS

EEHEEEFI/S R o pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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10. BEEE 10. FIXED ASSETS

HEREIE RAREE WMAERM R

Leasehold Furniture and Office Computer 4B
improvements fixtures equipment equipment Total
$ $ $ $ $

& Cost
RZE—+FMHA—H At1 April 2017 3,836,850 594,908 1,383,415 10,779,802 16,544,975
1 E Additions 2,295,187 379,160 592,766 4,398,802 7,665,915
# & Disposals = (8,629) (322,415) (508,583) (839,627)

RZZFE—/\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 6,132,037 965,439 1,603,766 14,670,021 23,371,263

2317 Accumulated depreciation

N-Z—+FMA—H At 1 April 2017 3,797,000 446,022 1,270,474 6,705,879 12,219,375
FHrE Charge for the year 661,560 178,376 133,121 2,281,466 3,254,523
2 E 1% 4§ Write back on disposals - (8,629) (322,415) (508,583) (839,627)

R-ZZE—N\FE=A=+—H At 31 March 2018 4,458,560 615,769 1,081,180 8,478,762 14,634,271

BRE${H Net book value

R-ZE—N\FE=AF=+—H At 31 March 2018 1,673,477 349,670 522586 6,191,259 8,736,992

R Cost
RZF—RFHA—H At 1 April 2016 3,819,350 478,960 1,333,415 9,912,080 15,543,805
#E Additions 17,500 115,948 - 867,722 1,001,170

RZE—tF=H=+—0 At 31 March 2017 3,836,850 594,908 1,333,415 10,779,802 16,544,975

ZE:1FE Accumulated depreciation

RZZF—RFEMA—AB At 1 April 2016 3,772,408 369,994 1,188,992 4,319,341 9,650,735
FRYTE Charge for the year 24,592 76,028 81,482 2,386,538 2,568,640
RZZE—+F=HF=+—H At 31 March 2017 3,797,000 446,022 1,270,474 6,705,879 12,219,375

BRE®{H Net book value

MZZFE—tF=A=+—H At 31 March 2017 39,850 148,886 62,941 4,073,923 4,325,600
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1. RERREEEY 11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
$ $
#1777 5% Cash at banks 43,915,433 56,456,194
FIHAEARR A7 =M A 89 5 BATF X
Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 17,849,500 =

MR ERRERERZ R RREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and
the statement of cash flows 61,764,933 56,456,194

R 3E B FF 4 Bh 12. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

2018 2017
$ $

R-ZT—+tF/ T R"FMOA - B

Balance as at 1 April 2017/2016 3,344,683 5,186,562
DU #HBh Grants received 1,995,000 350,000
FRER BB AR EEE Recognised as income in the year (1,801,489) (2,191,879)
RZZE—NF/ ZE—tF=A=+—BH&EH
Balance as at 31 March 2018/2017 3,538,194 3,344,683
B BEA [REAME] MEEE Less: Amount included in “current liabilities” (2,156,666) (1,746,072
A [FEREARE] MEEE Amount included in “non-current liabilities” 1,381,528 1,598,611
FHCERE T EEARFAEREET The grants received are mainly for the development of a secure
HHEZRG HEERWEERUSESFAR emall system for electronic communication among Members and
BITER - the Secretariat.
13. Rt FEfTRRIE R FEST & A 13. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2018 2017
$ $
81758 & Financial liabilities 1,371,581 1,370,769
RIEHY A #F R Unutilized annual leave 1,540,141 1,344,344
2,911,722 2,715,113

ﬁﬂ}f&‘ﬁmlﬁ NMEGEARBFARTFEAR Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within
one year.

o
F“a
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14. BT HmiN & E

2018 2017
$ $

RITE—+tF /2T "NFNA—Br&EH
Balance as at 1 April 2017/2016

2 5HE#E4E Provision made
2 &) A4 Provision utilised

R-Z—\F/ _T—tF=A=1t—HNER

Balance as at 31 March 2018/2017

14. PROVISION FOR STAFF GRATUITIES

4,086,567 4,301,182
3,467,545 3,262,283
(2,614,898) (3,476,898)
4,939,214 4,086,567

BTHmHeBRERATXNREE
EADTRMER=FAONE TN
MmN MR -

15. Rt &R e

RERFEASE T —EF A=+
“RFRAH (ITREZHETE) ([ES
8] )ENEN AR ARE RRERY
Az EREEENERRME  MZRER
BIEBLZVREELEIEEBEN
25% ° WNEZ A B HIR 2 R R Ak B
BFEEEREEBREN25% » FRIFFE
MREBREFRBRILE  NEAE
B EROBERLT —EFRFENE
BN FRUAR B TR ©

AeRAERNEEHRE A REREAD
BREEBBEHEENEE WAL E5
ZERETHNHMBREAREEN=2Z—N
FZRA=1+—HETEE -

Provision for staff gratuities is set up for the gratuity payments
which will be payable to employees of the Council who complete
their two or three-year contracts commencing from the date of
their employment.

15. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Inaccordance with section 6 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements (‘MAA") dated 22 June 2017 signed between the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("the Government”) and the Council, the Council is allowed to
keep and accumulate any unspent recurrent subvention as
reserve, subject to the condition that the reserve accumulated
should not exceed 25% of its recurrent subvention of that
financial year. If the reserve as at the end of the financial year
exceeds 25% of the recurrent subvention of that financial year,
the Council shall return the amount in excess of the limit to the
Government, except with the approval of Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury, by means of deducting the excessive
reserve from its subvention of the next financial year.

The Council considers the amount of excessive reserve for
the year has not been conclusive up to the reporting date, no
provision for the refund of excessive reserve to the Government
has been made as at 31 March 2018 accordingly.
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16. 7%iE 16. COMMITMENTS

RZEBE—NF=ZA=+—8  BEFTA At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease payments
RHRHLENEE A BRENNYERE under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties

AEMZemEnT are payable as follows:-
2018 2017
$ $
— A Within 1 year 11,689,999 11,687,556
—F1&ERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 3,896,666 15,583,408
15,586,665 27,270,964
17. &R TH 17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
REEMBEEED RATER The Council has classified its financial assets in the following
categories:

B3R R FEWSRIE Loans and receivables

2017
$ $
%% Deposits 3,022,207 2,962,157
JEULH] B, Interest receivable 5,893 -
H& RIB& B Cash and cash equivalents 61,764,933 56,456,194
64,793,033 59,418,351

reREMEBED BATER The Council has classified its financial liabilities in the following

categories:

RSN AT RN AR

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

$ $

Ho A e~ 5008 K fE 5T & B Other payables and accruals 1,371,581 1,370,769

MEsm T EMEMERS —Z—tF All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
E—E—N\E=A=+—HEEEHND different from their fair values as at 31 March 2017 and 2018.

FEEEZEERES -

renEEis ke TAFEHEEE The Council is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market

ERk o nEgEeREETEREE o &K risk arising in the normal course of its operation and financial
eF BN THESTEZZAR © LURIE instruments. The Council's risk management objectives, policies

Ly e WA ) B I NSITAR and processes mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse
;;TE}LE y ;ﬂx ® ORI R MR effects of these risks on its financial performance and position by
TRZE - closely monitoring the individual exposure.
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17. €M T8 (48) 17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) EERR (@) Credit risk

AevvEEAEHEERRE D The Council has no concentration of credit risk. The maximum

ABEER B EEFSEEBET exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amognt

o ASHEERR T Bk G R of the financial assets. The Council is exposed to credit risk
o o S on financial assets, mainly attrioutable to deposits with banks.

e ﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁ’\]ﬁ@@[ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬂ ’ The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the

ARERRITHRRZBBRITIRS counterparties are authorised financial institutions regulated

RE M i under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

B R EWSRIE Loans and receivables

2017
$
i —8 Summary quantitative data
& Deposits 3,022,207 2,962,157
JEUF B, Interest receivable 5,893 -
81777 3K Bank balances 43,915,433 56,456,194
FIERHARR 7 = 18 A 80 E BT K
Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 17,849,500 -
64,793,033 59,418,351
(b) RBE T R (b) Liquidity risk
KeWREELRMIETEERE - The Council is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It
SUBESIEHZESE B0 manages its funds conservatively by maintaining a comfortable
i o o ot g level of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous
VIREMIREFEBIEE & JA) & : ) ; o
?2 7 %E AeSERA - AneER operational need. The Council ensures that it maintains
BIFHBE - sufficient cash which is available to meet its liquidity.
BHIREKINIE
ReERrE8E —E R
Total contractual REREF
ARE{E undiscounted Within 1 year or
Carrying amount cash flow on demand
$ $
2018
o P 3008 R B 2
Other payables and accruals 1,371,581 1,371,581 1,371,581
2017
EAb T RIE R ESHE A
Other payables and accruals 1,370,769 1,370,769 1,370,769
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17. BT R (48)

(c) MiHZER
I 2= [ g

A FRREREZRERITER
WAE TR R YR IRIE R EED
e

K BRI TR E B AR ISR A

fREUE - Fit - AgEHTEE
;ﬂiﬁéﬁﬂfﬂﬁw °

E#E—% Summary quantitative data

i 25 & E Floating-rate financial assets

$R17457F Deposits with banks
FI HAEARR 5 = 18 B 09 E BATF 3K

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Council's exposure on fair value interest rate risk mainly
arises from its cash deposits with bank which are classified as
loans and receivables.

The Council mainly holds deposits with bank in saving
account and the exposure is considered not significant. In
consequence, No material exposure on fair value interest rate
risk is expected.

2018 2017

$ $
24,223,802 28,193,734
17,849,500 =
42,073,302 28,193,734

NEIRB Y P E A R BB VR EUR
MM - EAE R AU A RS A
SR BARTGELEATE -

(d) AAFEFECZERITA

RBEHR - AEWLBEER T AN
NHESER

18. FABE A X 5

RIRBEMHFRENR S MEHRIN - A
HEAE T R FRET IR ZMEBWT

&R 2 #4 Honorarium paid to Council members

No sensitivity analysis for the Council's exposure to interest
rate risk arising from deposits with bank is prepared since
based on the management's assessment the exposure is
considered not significant.

Financial instrument at fair value

At the end of reporting period, there were no financial
instruments stated at fair value.

18. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Council had the following material related party transactions
during the year:

2018 2017
$ $
851,880 808,450

ﬁ%@ﬁéﬁ%ié%&ﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁx% B
MAEHKERFTEERBAENRFES
AR ) 271 BB EBIBIERIREBA
NP BEERESHBEFET
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All transactions related to the procurement of goods and services
involving organisations in which a member of the Council and key
management personnel may have an interest are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with the Council's
financial obligations and normal procurement procedures.
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19.EEMERERNERENPE 19. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

AR EE STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR
AT T E B ERF A M ARAER 2 BB HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
FEERAVER| » 5 LRI gk BR R & 4238 N B year include the following HKFRSs which may be relevant to the
FREpE AR Council's operations and financial statements:

T E RS RN

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

ERVBWELERESE ST H —E-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BBNEHmELERE 1S5 RERKFE OB —T—-)\F—H—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments 1 January 2018
BB mEERE 1655 HE —E-h&F—H—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
EE (BB REREZE D) - REF22HR INEZZ RBFMNRE —ET-N\F—H—H
HK(FRIC) - Int 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018
BE (BB BREREZEY) - REF239 MEHEE 2 T —E-NF—HA—H
HK(FRIC) - Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
BB EWELRE25R(BF]R) AIRD N R HH 2 BN E —E-N\&—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018

Payment Transactions

BEMBMEEL B (BTN BEEMBHRELFBIRRBREVERETENE - N\F—F—H
HERFSRERMTA 1 January 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 4, Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

EBVBREREFESR (BFTAR) A BRHE CRATETS —E-hF—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019

BBV BEWELERE 105 R BB T ERFE28 (BF] R )Rt & ARl e &b W ARETE

Z KAt To be determined
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sales or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BB GTERIEA05% (BRI AR BRI EWE - \F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 40, Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018
BAVBMERE 2 FELuE —T—NE- T "FRAMEEVEMEEL 2 F —E-N\F—-A—R  wmEH
EokE 1 January 2018, as appropriate

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016

ZEBBUBEWMEERNARFE EIW M These HKFRSs have not yet been adopted in this year. Except
4o BTRXEMESN  ANeTERAEBTA as described below, the Council anticipates that the application of
H A s ] BB B S SR A Bl R B B T 2R all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will

N N S gEma have no material impact on the financial statements of the Council
EEAMETARRENT gty 0T TC T ey onhenand e

HARGNPHRRENEATE -
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19. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessees accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Council currently presents operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and interest portion which will be both presented as
financing cash flows by the Council.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Council has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of $15,586,665 as disclosed in note 16. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Council will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosures as
indicated above.



20. B BEAFRERER 20. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RBHREENR - \FN\A=-+—H These financial statements were authorised for issue by the
BRARSHFEE T4 o Council on 21 August 2018.
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Performance pledges

BEEESERTERENEERR ST T—RIIMIRFE RS

We attach great importance to efficient and quality performance.

Our performance pledges are:

[EES:B)#

Handling of cases

= &
E%ﬂ BE/ HEE

By telephone / in person
Enquiries

RIREFR(REDFERRE)
Performance target
(standard response time)

BEF

Immediately

EE|
In writing

BA IR LR L

10X A
Within 10 days

3{EAR
Within 3 months

Normal cases
Monitoring of
complaints EHER

Complicated cases

6 EA X
Within 6 months

BixER

Review cases

HERRFERRREBAERS/ DR B 5T

of Query raised by the IPCC with CAPO

BRER - ERBRAERRFNACERI ENVER

Q00O

148 BussErERRRsag | 201718 THES

6 EA X
Within 6 months

Counting from the date of receipt of CAPQO’s final investigation report/ response

—RER : IRFEERRELHTZR-—BEANENER (PIRERRIR 2B T)

Normal cases: minor cases (such as Impoliteness or Neglect of Duty) with no more than one round

BHRER  FERENER(PINRITRIFEERR) AQRFEZRREZR - BEANEMER
Complicated cases: all serious cases (such as Assault or Fabrication of Evidence) and minor cases
with two or more rounds of Queries raised by the IPCC with CAPO

Review cases: requests for reviewing the classification of Reportable Complaints



BETVIREMEERIT/AERRE I
HEZBREPIXHMEES > -
SRAZHRBEE

The Independent Police Complaints
Council will do its utmost to
discharge statutory duties and
identify improvements during vetting
to further enhance the service quality
of the Police.

HERFAREESN=AROEEBL] - [REIRIHEIRBAN  KBELRLEBREELER
RFER - ERMBERHNAKERIRRESEBRKSAL - BHERE - RMCEFNENER  REARY
EESTENEEBRIRA -

The cover design signified that the IPCC has been upholding its three interlocking core values, i.e. “Independence”,
“Impartiality” and “Integrity”, in vetting every complaint case. The extensive network pattern in the background
showed the IPCC’s strategic efforts to widen and deepen its scope of stakeholder engagement in promoting
public understanding of IPCC’s work and values.
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Independent Police Complaints Council
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Rooms 1006-10, 10/F, China Resources Building,

No. 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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